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Above all, InfoLogix intends to leverage its well-established leadership in providing enterprise
mobility solutions to capitalize on substantial opportunities in the high-growth healthcare and
enterprise workforce automation sectors in which we compete, We are bringing to market
highly innovative, value-added appilications and always-on infrastructures, and we believe we
have a highly talented team in place to power our strong sales momentum and drive our
growth. We look back on 2006 as a key foundation-building year for our company. We're
excited about our opportunity for 2007 and beyond, and we deeply appreciate the confidence
and support of our partners, customers, employees and all of you as stockholders.
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David Gulian
President and Chief Executive Officer

April 30, 2007
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2007 - Strategies for Accelerating Growth

Completing this operational and strategic groundwork in 2006, we entered 2007 with clear
differentiation from our competition. Today, InfoLogix offers a comprehensive approach to
enterprise-wide mobility that expands our value proposition to the enterprise customer. We
play a multi-faceted role as a technology solutions partner to our customers by providing the
complete spectrum of managed services, business applications, and strategic consulting
assistance that organizations need to fully optimize the productivity of their mobile enterprise.
While many of our peers only offer a single piece or component of the solution, the InfolLogix
team leverages domain knowledge of mobility to harness the power of wireless and RFID,
claiming a unique competitive position in providing customers with full mobility planning and
solutions across the enterprise.

Specifically, our finely tuned marketing, service delivery, product development and sales
strategies include:

> Strengthening our sales mix with a greater proportion of software and services to raise margins
and bolster our recurring revenue streams,

¥

Increasing solutions per customer by adding more intellectual property and executing on
our total solution delivery model,

> Leveraging our healthcare analytics capabilities by providing enhanced operational
intelligence data on top of our InfoTrax software as a service (SaaS) software system,

> Expanding our sales force to enhance geographic penetration across key territories in North
America,

> Executing a high profile channel-partner strategy to heighten our brand awareness,
shorten our sales cycle and complement our existing channel partnerships with Dell, Cisco,
Siemens, MEDITECH and others, and

> |dentifying and evaluating acquisition targets with software and services-based
operational models, powerful intellectual property, and synergistic technologies, geo-
graphic markets and company cultures.

With our equity financing of last November, we believe we are well-funded for select acquisitions
as well as the expansion of our sales force and product and service development.
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Dear Fellow Stockholder,

2006 was a pivotal year for InfoLogix, culminating with significant strategic and operational
milestones including a sizeabie equity financing and commencement of public trading of
our common stock. Today, InfoLogix is a leading single-source provider of mobile intelligence
solutions operating at the intersection of the dynamically growing Healthcare IT, RFID, and
wireless mobility solution markets. With growth capital, top-notch management and board

Y
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leadership, and a differentiated expansion strategy in place, we believe
InfoLogix is operationally and organizationally fit to tackle our next phase
of growth.

2006 - Phase | Growth Plan

In just five years of operations, we have experienced year-over-year growth in
both our business and marketplace, reaching record milestones in 2006 of
$61 million in revenue and over 1,900 customers.

Specific achievements in 2006 reinforced our branding as an emerging leader
and aggregator in our market:

We completed a $17 million equity financing to supportinvestment in business development
efforts, sales force expansion and our acquisition strategy. Our common stock subsequently
commenced trading on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol IFLG on December 8, 2006.

We formed a nine-person Board of Directors led by Chairman Warren V. “Pete” Musser, a
renowned investor and CEO of The Musser Group. Our Board is comprised of exceptional
leaders of high integrity including Super Bowl winning Coach Dick Vermeil, mobile and
RFID industry guru Tom Miller, former CFO of GMAC Commercial Holding Corp. Wayne
Hoch, entrepreneur Jake Steinfeld and former head of the U.S. Naval Academy Tom Lynch.

We attained an important performance milestone reaching 1,900 customers, including
1,100 hospitals. This provides a solid core business platform on which to build a fully
integrated, solution-oriented approach to enterprise mobility.

We continued expanding our sales of higher-value mobile user-focused solutions: consulting,
RFID-based business applications, managed mobile services, end-user platforms, connectivity,
and infrastructure services.

Throughout the year, we expanded our management team, our sales, marketing and technical
staff, and the Company’s operational infrastructure in preparation for new product develop-
ment and introductions, new value-added services and applications, and accelerating growth
and expansion.

Continue inside ...
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CAUTIONARY LANGUAGE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS AND INDUSTRY DATA

This report contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995 that involve risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond our control.
Our actual results could differ maiterially and adversely from those anticipated in such forward-looking
statements as a result of certain factors, including those set forth in this-report. Important factors that may
cause actual results to differ from projections include, but are not limited to, for example:

¢ adverse economic conditions;

» inability to raise sufficient additional capital to operate our business;

e unexpected costs, lower than expected sales and revenues, and operating deficits;
» adverse results of any legal proceedings;

» inability to attract or retain qualified personnel, including sales and marketing, and scientific
personnel; and

» other specific risks that may be referred to in this report, including those under “Risk Factors.”

All statements, other than statements of historical facts, included in this report regarding our strategy,
future operations, financial position, estimated revenue or losses, projected costs, prospects, current
expectations, forecasts, and plans and objectives of management are forward-looking statements. When
used in this report, the words “will,” “may,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “estimate,” “expect,”
“should,” “project,” “plan” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements,
although not all forward-looking statements contain such identifying words. All forward-looking
statements speak only as of the date of this report. We do not undertake any obligation to update any
forward-looking statements or other information contained herein, except as required by federal securities
laws, You should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. Although we believe that
our plans, intentions and expectations reflected in or suggested by the forward-looking statements in this
report are reasonable, we cannot assure you that these plans, intentions or expectations will be achieved.
We have disclosed important factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from our
expectations under “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this report. These cautionary statements qualify all
forward-looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf.

b

Information regarding market and industry statistics contained in this report is included based on
information available to us that we believe is accurate. It is generally based on academic and other
publications that are not produced for purposes of securities offerings or economic analysis. We have not
reviewed or included data from all sources, and we cannot assure you of the accuracy or completeness of
the data included in this report. Forecasts and other forward-looking information obtained from these
sources are subject to the same qualifications and the additional uncertainties accompanying any
estimates of future market size, revenue and market acceptance of products and services. We undertake
no obligation to update forward-looking information to reflect actual resulis or changes in assumptions or
other factors that could affect those statements. See “Risk Factors” for a more detailed discussion of
uncertainties and risks that may have an impact on future results,




PART I
Item 1. Business
General

InfoLogix, Inc. is a Delaware corporation that was organized under the laws of the State of Nevada on
November 22, 2004 and subsequently merged with and into a corporation organized under the laws of the
State of Delaware on November 22, 2006. InfoLogix stock is quoted on the National Association of
Securitics Dealers’ Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board. On November 29, 2006, Infol.ogix Systems
Corporation (formed in 2001), a Delaware corporation, merged with and into a wholly owned subsidiary of
InfoLogix, Inc. As a result, InfoLogix, Inc. is a holding company for, and conducts substantially all of its
operations through, its wholly-owned subsidiary InfoLogix Systems Corporation and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries OPT Acquisition LLC and Embedded Technologies, LLC. On November 29, 2006, concurrent
with the closing of the merger, InfoLogix, Inc. completed a private placement of 8,500,000 shares of
common stock, which provided gross proceeds of $17,000,000. Prior to the merger, InfoLogix, Inc.
conducted minimal operations. After the merger, the business of InfoLogix Systems Corporation is now
the sofe business of InfoLogix, Inc. References throughout this report to “we”, “us”, “our”, “the Company”
and “InfoLogix” are references to Infologix, Inc. and its wholly-owned direct and indirect subsidiaries
unless otherwise indicated.

We provide mobile workforce technology solutions to customers in the healthcare and enterprise
sectors in North America. Qur business is organized to provide consulting, business software applications,
managed services, devices and other hardware products, and wireless communications infrastructure. Our
professional services and products include proprietary software and radio frequency identification (RFID)
technologies that enhance workflow and customer care using real-time information. We deliver our
products and professional services to customers utilizing mobile applications that run on handheld
computers, cell phones, tablet computing devices and mobile workstations, and that operate with existing
enterprise software solutions.

Mobile workforce technology solutions speed the delivery of critical information throughout
organizations allowing better patient care and management in hospitals, more effective customer service in
retail settings, increased customer retention across all types of businesses, more efficient use of company
assets and enhanced ability to identify new revenue opportunities. The introduction of new technologies
and the ubiquity of wireless connectivity have improved the performance of enterprise mobility solutions
by allowing organizations to collect, analyze and disseminate information on customers, assets, suppliers
and manufacturers quickly and more efficiently than legacy technologies. As recently introduced
technologies continue to develop and new ones emerge, we believe companies will continue to invest in
enterprise mobility solutions, such as those offered by us. Our enterprise mobility solutions leverage the
improved information flow across the enterprise into a competitive advantage by reducing errors,
identifying revenue opportunities and proactively managing and monitoring capital equipment and supply
chain functions. We believe that with our unique combination of professional services and products, third-
party strategic alliances, intellectual property and patent portfolio, our ability to integrate with enterprise
software solutions, and our base of over 1,900 customers, we are well positioned in the enterprise mobility
solutions marketplace.

We believe the Company is well positioned to capitalize on the growth of the mobile technology
market by focusing our business in two business units—Healthcare and Enterprise Mobility:

Healthcare—our healthcare group is focused on hospitals and other acute-care settings where we plan
to establish new customers and leverage our relationships with over 1,100 existing customers to introduce
our mobile solutions designed to improve workflow and patient care. We have sold over 40,000 mobile




work stations in the healthcare market over the past four years, and have therefore established a market
leadership position.

Enterprise Mobility—our enterprise mobility group is focused on delivering single source, integrated
mobile workforce technology solutions to organizations in several industrics. We enable suppliers,
manufacturers, distributors, retailers and service providers to transform their operations using our
workforce automation solutions to aggressively manage their end-to-end supply chain. We enhance just-in-
time manufacturing and production by incorporating real-time information to all participants in the supply
chain.

We have designed a unique approach to the mobile and wireless market by combining our experience,
industry and technology knowledge, and existing customer installed base that integrates our suite of
offerings into a high-value solution. Qur offerings include consulting, business software applications,
managed services, devices and other hardware products, and wireless communications infrastructure. This
strategy allows us multiple entry points into both existing and new customer relationships thereby creating
future revenue generating opportunities for both business groups. :

Industry Overview

We are positioned at the convergence of the growing enterprise mobility, healthcare information
technology and RFID markets. The addressable market opportunity reflects a confluence of market
dynamics. According to Venture Development Corporation (VDC) research in September 2005,
enterprise mobility solutions are projected to be a $21 billion market by 2008 driven by rapid adoption
within industries such as healthcare, manufacturing/distribution and retail for the purposes of streamlining
data sharing and communication, Growth in the Hospital Information Systems (HIS) market is being
driven by increasing Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) and cost pressures.
HIS market growth is estimated to grow from $52 billion today to $61 billion by 2009 according to Health
Industry Insights research of February 2006. Additionally, the RFID technology industry is also
experiencing rapid adoption, with analysts projecting market growth from $2 billion today to $25 billion by
2015 according to Gartner research of November 2005, : .

Enterprise Mobility Solutions: Enterprise mobility solutions provide healthcare and other
commercial organizations with wireless access to a variety of digital information and resources through
handheld and PC-based applications. In particular, these enterprise mobility solutions allow real-titme
access of information to remote employees, customers, suppliers and partners. Any business that tracks
critical assets, from rental cars to construction equipment to hospital beds, or that needs to interact with
individuals inside or outside of their organization is a potential client for enterprise mobility solutions.

RFID: Radio frequency identification technology uses radio frequency to send a signal to a receiver
that accurately tracks the location of assets and individuals. Typically, this technology is housed in chips or
tags that are placed on products that a company offers, manages or supports. By placing these RFID-based
chips or tags on products, an organization is better able to determine the location, time of arrival or
identification of a product and better manage its supply chain and inventory.

Hospital Information Systems: Hospital information systems are those systems that healthcare
providers use to monitor or maintain patient records, billing, asset and inventory information, and overall
facility management. ‘

Business Units

We operate as two business units, Healthcare and Enterprise Mobility, each sharing sales, operations
and administrative support. Each business unit offers mobile workforce technology solutions through the




combination of consulting, business software applications, managed mobile services, devices and hardware,
and wireless communication infrastructure.

Healthcare

We are a single source, integrated healthcare mobility solutions provider. We have developed a
portfolio of healthcare solutions that consist of software, professional services and hardware for point-of-
care and point-of-activity. These mobile managed solutions enable our healthcare clients to gain
immediate access to up-to-the-minute information spanning their enterprises. The software applications
facilitate critical point-of-care intelligence for our healthcare clients, including access to real-time clinical
information, medication management solutions and enterprise asset and patient tracking.

Healthcare providers are under constant pressure from patients, Medicare, insurers, regulators and
other stakeholders to increase the productivity and utilization of their mobile assets (for example, beds, IV
pumps, and sonograms). This has to occur while maximizing the safety and efficacy of the care of their
patients and maintaining the integrity and privacy of their medical records. These providers use disparate
enterprise and application specific-systems in both their administrative and clinical functions. To be
effective, these systems must be able to interface with each other, thereby creating integration challenges
and increasing the overall complexity of the information technology infrastructure. Networking
technologies continue to evolve and grow, with local, wide-area and personal area networks each having
their advantages and disadvantages. In this environment, systems engineers often find they must
compromise the architectural integrity of the overall network to accommodate the proliferation of mobile
devices requiring access to the network. Finally, in the healthcare setting, interference with sensitive
medical equipment (known as telemetry) and security add another layer of complexity to the larger
problems of mobile wireless computing.

From a healthcare-specific application perspective (for example, wireless prescription writing and
charge capture), to more common messaging capabilities (for example, wireless e-mail and instant
messaging), we believe there are many possibilities for improvements to heaithcare delivery through the
use of mobile and wireless technologies. At the same time, however, the choices, complexity and
integration challenges for information systems managers continue to increase. Mobile devices continue to
proliferate, with a growing number of personal computing devices, enhanced phones and smart phones
entering the market. Architectural issues are an exercise in compromises. Networking technologies
continue to evolve and grow, with local, wide-area and personal area networks each having their
advantages and disadvantages. Interference with sensitive medical equipment and security are just two of
the larger challenges of mobile wireless computing in their environment. To meet these needs and address
these challenges, there are a multitude of vendors, new and established, cross-industry and healthcare
specific—all vying for a share of the mobile wireless healthcare market.

Mobile healthcare is the use of portable devices in combination with synchronization (i.c., either
cradled or wireless) or always-on (i.e., connected wirelessly) technology to bring computing power to the
point-of-care or wherever the healthcare professional or patient needs it. Mobile devices include enhanced
phones/smart phones, personal digital assistants (PDA), clamshell devices (i.e., pen), tablet notebooks and
laptops. Wireless technology includes wireless local-area networks (WLAN), wireless wide-area networks
(WWAN) and wireless personal-area networks (WPAN). Although healthcare is still in the early stages of
adoption of mobile wireless technology when compared to other industries and users (for example,
package delivery companies, utilities workers, warehousing and the rental car industry), it is already
becoming clear that the rollout and management of these capabilitics will offer significant challenges. This
provides significant opportunities for consulting and directing companies’ mobile computing
implementations.




Our point-of-care clinical solutions enable clinictans to focus more on the important patient care tasks
at hand and less on documentation. Access to electronic documentation at the bedside also streamlines the
care process and assists physicians and nurses in making better patient care decisions. Critical patient data,
such as identification and confirmation of drug allergies and interactions, primary and secondary
diagnoses, laboratory results and vital signs, is literaily at the clinician’s fingertips. Additionally, vital signs
and other clinical data can be recorded electronically through interfaces to patient monitors, further
streamlining the documentation process. Communication between caregivers is enhanced since patient
data is available in real-time to caregivers with access to the system. Recent technology advances mean
clinicians have broader access to patient information.

We provide integrated products and professional services to the healthcare sector, including hospitals
and long term care facilities. Our integrated products and professional services are designed 1o help
hospitals and clinicians reduce medical errors, improve workflow, enhance efficiency, reduce costs and
build stronger patient relationships. We believe that our products can reduce hospital errors and thereby
can reduce healthcare costs and potentially save lives. The following describes our integrated healthcare
mobility solutions:

Mobile Point-gf-Care Workstations

Our point-of-care workstations with RFID and barcode technologies automate the interaction
between nurse and patient at bedside for capturing clinical information as well as for administering
medications and other treatments. We believe that our point-of-care applications will help prevent
inappropriate drug administration which could lead to adverse drug effects and deaths from medication
errors. We have been selling this product line since 2002, and currently have over 40,000 units deployed
across the healthcare market. Qur point-of-care product line represented over 40% of our total revenue in
2006.

We develop and manufacture ergonomic wireless mabile point-of-care solutions for the healthcare
industry. Our mobile point-of-care workstations provide the basis for hardware and software solutions that
create a portal or gateway into a heaithcare provider’s front-end and back-end clinical data information
technology systems. The mobile point-of-care workstation can be configured to address the full continuum
of a client’s mobile computing needs. Clients are provided the option to mount small form-factor PCs,
liquid crystal display flat panel monitors, laptop computers, tablet PCs, proprietary power solutions,
medical-grade keyboards, bar-code data collection devices and other mobility-enabled equipment, on our
mobile point-of-care workstations, As a result, nurses, doctors, specialists and other clinicians can gain
ready access to HIPAA compliant, up-to-the-minute patient ddtd at the pomt—of—care

Our mobile point-of-care workstation models mclude

* Medication Mobile Point-of-Care Workstation. The medication mobile point-of-care workstation is a
mobile technology platform that optimizes hospital medication administration. This automated
point-of-care medication administration system, which features eight medication drawers, is
designed to reduce medication errors and associated complications. Nurses scan the bar-coded
medication to confirm the right dose of medication and the patient’s bar-coded wristband to ensure
that the correct patient is receiving the appropriate dose of medication at the right time. The
medication mobile point-of-care workstations operate in conjunction with a hospital pharmacy’s
information technology systems.

o Dual Monitor Picture Archival and Communications System (PACS) Display Mobile Point-of-Care
Workstation. The Dual Monitor PACS mobile point-of-care workstation is designed to eliminate the
cost and disruption of remodeling an operating room when deploying PACS workstations. The
mobile point-of-care workstation allows for liquid crystal display monitors to be mounted side-by-
side on a mobile platform.




Software

We have dedicated significant resources and capital to developing, acquiring and partnering with
leading software firms to deliver a full range of healthcare software applications, including patient bed
management, hospital asset tracking, e-Learning and computer security. These software applications are
designed to facilitate and fully integrate point-of-care mobility solutions for our customers. Gur
proprietary software applications include the following: '

HealthTrax Wireless Tracking Software. HealthTrax Wireless Tracking software is designed to help
hospitals identify the location of hospital assets and patients. The HealthTrax solution includes
RFID tags that are compatible with all hospital wireless network infrastructures and provide real-
time asset and patient monitoring information leading to increased productivity and patient safety.
We developed the HealthTrax solution by integrating MobileView’s location engine software with
our own proprietary software. HealthTrax is intended to aid hospital administrators by:

improving clinical workflow by ensuring the right people and equipment are in the right location on
a timely basis;

minimizing theft or loss of expensive assets through timely tracking;
avoiding costly “quick fixes,” such as leasing or buying additional equipment;

establishing choke-points that trigger automatic alerts when equipment is moved somewhere that it
does not belong; and

ensuring staff can pinpoint the location of any patient requiring immediate medication or medical
attention. '

BedCentral Software. Effective hospital bed management is key to serving patients, reducing
administrative costs, increasing patient flow efficiency and increasing hospital revenue. Without
reliable, real-time information regarding bed status, hospitals can encounter an array of problems
that result in underutilized resources, patient inconvenience and a significant loss of revenue. Our
BedCentral application is an interactive patient bed management software system that assists
hospitals to monitor bed status and improve communications thereby increasing bed availability and
decrease patient wait times. BedCentral provides more than thirty customizable productivity and
efficiency reports for improved information analysis designed to (i} schedule, reserve or request
patient bed assignments, (ii) assign and transfer patients, (iii) reduce or eliminate dependency on
telephone calls to communicate patient and bed requirements, (iv) reduce/eliminate paper
processes and (v) provide clinicians with accurate and on-demand reports and automatic alerts via
hand-held devices. The purpose of BedCentral is to help hospitals:

obtain a holistic, up-to-the-minute view of hospital bed status to help reduce administrative costs
and increase revenue through more effective and proactive bed management;

gain faster access to reliable data needed to identify and resolve potential problems in a timely
manner while preventing duplicate data;

place clinical staff where they are needed most by having an accurate assessment of available
hospital beds;

better manage patient traffic, thereby increasing patient satisfaction and admissions through more
efficient management; and

reduce food waste using a dietary module that prevents dispatch of meals to empty beds.

BedCentral was developed beginning in 2006 for deployment throughout a major Houston, Texas-
based hospital system and is now pilot testing in two additional hospital systems.




e-Learning

We offer e-Learning solutions through an extensive library of interactive and dynamic courses
regarding HIPAA and other regulatory issues, and modules customized for a client’s specific processes and
procedures. In addition to healthcare training, we provide customized on-location training for our
enterprise mobile customers. Whether used for an organization-wide implementation of a new technology
or a department-wide procedural review, we belicve that our e-Learning solutions address numerous
challenges faced by healthcare providers and commercial users, including:

» complex logistics of training a large number of people effectively on a strict timetable;

* minimizing training time spent by staff which results in more time available for patient and
customer interaction;

¢ developing, supporting and retaining a knowledgeable and skilled staff;

e providing trainees with diverse levels of education, styles of learning and familiarity with
technology;

e delivering a consistent, unified training message, communicating standard procedures and policies;
and

» educating employees hired after training events,

Unlike traditional classroom training, our e-Learning solutions enable standardized and customized
training solutions to be efficiently delivered to large numbers of employees both on their schedules and
directly at the point-of-access, typically by our mobile point-of-activity or mobile point-of-care
workstations. Training methods include interactive tutorials, on-line knowledge assessments, wide area
classroom methods and instruction services. Delivery options include media such as video, CD-ROM,
video conferencing, web delivery, internet, audio-desktop conferences, paper-based materials, and stand-
up instruction.

Training modules developed and implemented to date include HIPAA privacy and security training,
clinical application training templates (Siemens AG Medication Administration Checker training,
McKesson Corporation’s Horizon Expert Documentation clinical documentation training and Medical
Information Technology, Inc.’s nursing training) and an assessment and certification module, designed to
test, certify, provide feedback, and report on clinical courseware retention. We have several other
e-Learning software modules currently under development.

Healthcare Financing Practices

We occasionally depend upon our senior lender to issue letters of credit to the benefit of our suppliers
and vendors in order to reduce the credit risk that such suppliers and vendors may incur as a result of large
purchase orders we may place from time to time. Our senior lender charges us approximately .375% for
each 90 day period of the face value of a documentary letter of credit and 2.875% per annum of the face
value of a standby letter of credit. The letters of credit are terminated upon the payment in full of the
supplier or vendor invoice. We use this form of credit enhancement on the resale of mobile and wireless
hardware and related equipment.

Enterprise Mobility

We are a single source, integrated enterprise mobility solutions provider to commercial enterprises
across several industries. Our supply chain solutions enable suppliers, manufacturers, distributors, retailers
and service providers to transform their operations using mobile computing solutions by having the tools to
aggressively manage their end-to-end supply chain. We are enhancing just-in-time manufacturing and
production by incorporating real-time information to all participants in the supply chain.




While the commercial market is further along than the healthcare market in its adoption of mobile
enterprise solutions it is still a growing market. Nevertheless, our commercial customers continue to search
for ways to further optimize supply chain management requirements. Mobile computing solutions
positively impact companies by reducing costs in their procurement functions and in inventory
management. Logistics organizations/departments are expected to see continued pressures to reduce
inventories as well as warehouse and transportation costs. We believe the application of technology will
further reduce costs in three major areas: network optimization, selected outsourcing and enhanced
supplier integration. These improvements will drive the trend towards lean, mostly external logistics
functions utilizing efficient, optimized networks, supported by technology which enables “virtual
inventories” that blur the line between customer-owned, and supplier-owned materials.

The use of mobile techriology to quickly move and track products helps our customers save time,
increase productivity, and enhance the flow of information between our customers’ handheld devices at the
point of transaction and their core business systems. We design our enterprise mobility solutions so that
our customers can respond quickly to their customers’ demands, increase inventory turns, improve line-
level accuracy and simplify compliance with regulatory requirements, as well as easily share supply
information with customers and vendors. Our enterprise mobility solutions offer advanced data capture,
mobile computing, wireless local area networks, route delivery and management software with the intent to
speed the transfer of data and optimize the complete corporate operations of our customers. This leads to
faster and improved decision making. In addition to our mobile point-of-activity and mobile point-of-care
workstations, wall-desks, mobile point-of-sale devices and vehicle-mounted workstations, we integrate a
broad portfolio of point-of-activity hardware products designed for use in the commercial market,
including laptops and tablet PCs, bar-code data collection devices, computer keyboards, form-factor PCs,
handheld devices, proprietary power solutions, wearable computers and wireless infrastructure devices.

Fi unctional Applications
Our commercial solutions address critical functlona] applications :ncludmg

e Distribution. Distribution logistics relles on analyzmg real-time mformatlon ag it relates to product
quantities, product movement and location throughout the supply chain. Examples of distribution
enterprise mobility solutions provided by us include wireless handheld computers used to scan
products upon warchouse arrival and exit and wearable PCs used to permit warehouse operators to
perform a multitude of tasks (such as physical inventory counts) in a hands-free environment.

¢ Manufacturing. Manufacturing logistics relies on accessing up-to-the-minute information as it
relates to materials and parts-inventory pipelines to enable just-in-time manufacturing processes.
An example of an enterprise manufacturing solition includes mobile, rugged, computing solutions
used to capture information on the warehouse floor and integrate that information into databases
via wircless connectivity devices, thus facilitating improved financial management, mventory control
and tracking of customer orders.

® Retail. Retail applications rely on accessing information at the point-of-sale and ensuring
automatic replenishment of inventories. In addition, enterprise mobility solutions are used by retail
cllent% to accurately produce and capture shelf labels for in-store marketlng and plannograms.
Examples of retail enterprise mobility solutions include wireless point-of-sale devices used by client
customers to securely complete financial transactions at a single location via a credit or debit card
and bar-code scanning devices used to enable client employees to quickly and efficiently perform
physical inventories. '

e Transportation and Field Services. Transportation and field services logistics rely on effectively
planning, scheduling and managing goods according to pre-determined delivery expectations.
Examples of transportation and field services enterprise mobility solutions include vehicle-mounted
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systems used to capture and transmit real-time information on driver performance, routes taken
and hours worked and handheld computers to aliow client employees to receive pick-up and
delivery schedules at the beginning and throughout a work shift.

Automnation of Commercial Processes

Our integrated commercial mobility solutions allow our customers to automate many of the essential
steps in their manufacturing, production, delivery and other processes that are critical to the success of
their businesses.

We believe that we combine the latest information technology with extensive knowledge of
warchousing, manufacturing, distribution and field-based operations. We also have vertical market
specialists in areas including automotive, healthcare, retail and government. This industry specific expertise
ensures the best solution for each customer’s business. Our customers include Fortune 500 companies,
including Kraft, Dell, UPS, McDonalds, Subaru, Barnes & Noble, and National Rental Car, as well as,
small to medium-sized manufacturing, service and distribution companies.

We believe that we provide the experience, expertise and resources to maximize productivity,
efficiency and accuracy from off-the-shelf bar code data collection products to complete turnkey solutions
including software, hardware, project management, training, installation, testing, documentation and
support.

Products and Services

® Route Delivery System. Our route delivery system is a complete mobile route delivery and
transportation software solution which atlows our customers to mobilize their delivery workforce. It
incorporates optimized scheduling, route building, picking, loading and route delivery processes to
close the loop on inventory management and control. This can be delivered as an entire solution, or
implemented in modules. It integrates functions such as mobile GPS/Mapping and signature
capture for proof of delivery. It also allows our customers’ drivers to transmit and receive data on
the road and thereby provide their customers with accurate deliveries and correct, timely
information on out-of-stock or promotional items while maintaining accurate on-truck inventory.

The real-time capabilities in our route delivery system ensure that key stakeholders of our
customers have visibility into inventory and order information. Furthermore, optimized inventory
processes ensure accurate customer orders are delivered on time. These inventory and order
efficiencies drive cost containment and cost reduction throughout the supply chain by reducing and,
in some cases, eliminating redundancies, unnecessary routes, picking and loading inaccuracies,
shrinkage and driver mistakes.

Real-time visibility of enterprise information is necessary for gaining and maintaining operating
efficiencies, and is another reason organizations are looking to wireless mobile technologies. Our
route delivery system is web-enabled, which allows for the real-time flow of information from
drivers and trucks to the back office. This enhanced visibility provides decision makers access to
critical enterprise and supply chain data, including order pick lists, schedules, truck routes, delivery
status and discrepancies.

» RFID Solutions for Vehicle Tracking and Fleet Management. Our RFID vehicle tracking solution is
intended to assist companies in managing their distribution process. We believe that these solutions
are particularly useful in the construction and transportation industries to help our customers track
vehicle movement through various pickup or loading locations. The system collects information on
the truck, project assignment, and weight for each load by RFID tag readers throughout plant
locations. Utilizing an RFID vehicle tracking solution, it is possible for our customers to replace
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manual reporting of departure and arrival times, weight, and other data gathered at the destination
or site locations with automation. Similarly, our RFID solutions allow fleet managers to monitor
and track their vehicles, which should provide the following benefits:

e increased productivity and reduced costs;

e improved asset utilization and management by real-time equipment availability and shipment
arrival information;

increased customer satisfaction;

faster vehicle entry, exit and authorization for fueling or maintenance; and
e increased security via continuous, automatic monitoring and tracking.

o RFID Solutions for Warehousing Logistics. The use of RFID solutions in warehousing logistics
impacts everyone working for manufacturing companies, from the forklift operator to the head of
logistics. We believe that it improves warehouse and distribution center efficiency, saves time in
deliveries, increases productivity and reduces human error. We also believe that it allows for cost
savings in out-of-stock supply chain reductions, helps to prevent counterfeit issues and theft, and
assists companies in obtaining key information on customers and their activities. The combination
of RFID hardware with a unique electronic product code transforms the supply chain and enables
manufacturers to associate specific information with each RFID tagged object.

o Supply Chain and Logistics Products. Expertise in systems architecture and infrastructure are still
vital elements in selecting new applications and vendors, especially for complex supply-chain
systems solutions. Organizations demand that the implementation of new software will not disrupt
production or shipping. We provide complete packages of mobile wireless solutions to facilitate
supply chain management. We offer a wide variety of barcode readers ranging from simple
keyboard wedge bar code scanners to advanced radio frequency terminals. Our core business
focuses on helping clients to optimize their accessibility to information through wireless mobile
computing technology. We believe that the benefits from our supply chain and logistics products
are:

s higher productivity with real-time inventory visibility across the supply chain;
» improved fill rates and decreased overall logistics costs;

e reduced order cycle times with collaboration support with suppliers;

¢ reduced labor costs by eliminating inefficient inventory movements;

» improved efficiencies with paperless execution of supply chain processes;

o improved throughput and use of facility space;

e reduced administrative and data entry costs with automated data acquisition;
» improved picking and put-away productivity;

» reduced inventory carrying and holding costs; and

. improvéd customer service by eliminating picking and shipping errors.

e Services for Retailers. We provide mobile point-of-sale systems, retail inventory management
systems, solutions and technology. Wireless data collection solutions link our customers’ enterprise
resource planning systems to their retail floors using advanced automated barcode and RFID
wireless data capture terminals and printers thus providing enhanced inventory management.
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We work with some of the world’s largest retailers across a wide application set spanning from the
loading dock to the retail floor. With operations and facilities across North America and Europe,
these clients have the resources needed to deploy a multi-site, multi-national solution. We also have
experience within the retail inventory management environment, working with a diverse group of
retail customers including mass merchandisers, department stores, specialty goods, and others. Qur
retail application suite includes mobile point-of-sale, stock auditing, inventory management, proof
of delivery, and supply chain management.

o Mobile Point-gf-Activity Workstations. Our mobile point-of-activity workstations are designed to
deliver productivity gains from efficient employee interaction; improved data collection accuracy
and dissemination, and increased client employee and client customer satisfaction. Our mobile
point-of-activity workstations are constructed of durable materials to withstand occupational
abuses. The mobile point-of-activity workstations feature small, sturdy bases, secure wheels and
durable handles to provide smooth operation and a spacious desk-top work area. The workstations
are highly versatile, supporting unique combinations of laptops and tablet personal computers,
proprietary power solutions, bar-code data collection devices and other peripheral hardware
solutions. Our mobile point-of-activity workstations typically include mounted printer technologies.

» Mobile Point-of-Sale Devices. Our MPT400 is a point-of-sale solution that offers retail and field
service clients a complete wireless transaction platform in a mobile hand-held device. The MPT400
is specifically designed for clients employing a mobile workforce who need to manage inventory,
conduct sutveys, track assets and collect payments. Offering technologically-advanced feature sets,
the MPT400 delivers integrated radio systems, as well as a built-in one-dimensional or
two-dimensional bar-code data collection device, a thermal printer, a magstripe reader,
directional/numeric keypad and a color touch screen.

o Vehicle-mounted Workstations. Vehicle-mounted computers are designed for use in the most
rugged environments where they are mounted to warehouse and manufacturing equipment and
vehicles (such as forklifts).

s Other products. Qur mability solutions for commercial enterprises also include bar-code data
collection devices, form-factor PCs, secure wireless networks, handheld devices, tablet PCs, mobile
wireless bar-code and label printers, vehicle-mounted computers, wearable computers, wireless
connectivity and interconnectivity devices, and proprietary power solutions.

Commercial Financing Practices

Only our healthcare business requires us to depend on our senior secured asset-based line of credit
and cash balances to fund the sales and related costs associated with our operations. We generally do not
depend on third-party credit enhancement programs in this business unit.

Sales and Marketing

We employ direct and indirect selling models. The sales organization is primarily geographically based
across our Healthcare and Enterprise Mobility Solutions businesses. We currently employ 20 direct sales
representatives located in the United States. Our sales organization manages our customers and prospects
using a variety of methodologies and information technology-based tools. We have created a proprictary
sales force automation system that helps our management and sales/marketing representatives manage the
sales process efficiently, while providing direct integration into their email communication system.

We sell and market our technology solutions through a network of strategic alliances. To date, we
have partnered with over twenty leading third-party providers including Cisco, Dell, Intermec, Alien and
Zebra Technologies. These relationships are synergistic: we refer business to partners from our existing
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customers and, in exchange, we receive preferential pricing and referrals from these partners. We market
our preducts, solutions, and professional services through a variety of methods including: direct selling,
inside sales, industry trade shows and professional conferences, public relations and targeted marketing
campaigns, our corporate website (www.InfoLogixsys.com), search engine optimization and marketing, and
channel partner programs.

Patents and Proprietary Technology

We file patent applications to protect technology, innovations and improvements that we consider
important to the development of our business. Throughout our history, we have proactively invested in and
acquired intellectual property assets. We continue to partner and invest to develop, capture and deliver
unique, high-quality, differentiated and cost-effective mobile workforce technology solutions for our
customers. We have 14 issued patents in the U.S. related to wearable computers, and 5 patent applications
pending with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office related to a proprietary power solution specifically
designed for mobile workstations, a system and method for live interactive distance learning, and related
mobile wireless computer systems. The patents for which we have received a final issuance have remaining
legal lives that vary from 5 to 11 years.

We also rely on trade secrets and proprietary know-how that we seek to protect, in part, through
confidentiality agreements with our employees, consultants, customers, business partners, and other third
parties. As a condition of employment, we require that all full-time and part-time employees enter into an
inventor assignment and non-disclosure agreement.

We intend to continue to broaden the scope of our intellectual property portfolio, which we consider
critical to our future product development.

If we are unable to protect our patents and proprietary rights, our reputation and competitiveness in
the marketplace could be materially damaged. Litigation may therefore be necessary in order to enforce
any patents that we now hold, that are issued to us, or that we acquire in the future.

Customers

We have delivered enterprise mobility solutions to over 1,900 customers in North America. The
following are examples of the enterprise mobility solutions that we have delivered in the healthcare and
commercial markets:

e Regional 650-bed hospital. Our healthcare solutions group designed and implemented a complete
wireless mobility solution for the hospital to capture patient-level clinical information and support
medication administration at the point of care. The wireless solution has now expanded our
opportunity to address other mobile applications such as HealthTrax Wireless Tracking,
Computerized Physician Order Entry using handheld PDA’s and Mobile Voice over IP Phones. All
of the mobile solutions were deptoyed using our e-Learning education technologies.

s A Fortune 1000 company that is one of the leading car rental firms with over 800 locations in the United
States and Canada. Our commercial solutions group designed and implemented wireless and
mobile car return and counter system. We have installed 450 corporate rental locations for returns
utilizing wireless and handheld devices managing approximately 165,000 vehicles nationwide. We
are now deploying our proprietary point of sale counter system for check in and reservation
services. We have been contracted to provide Mobile Managed Support Services for each location,
which include our e-Learning, installation, and customer care portal for asset tracking and
management.

As a percentage of total revenue, our five largest customers accounted for, in the aggregate,
approximately 28%, 42% and 28% of our revenue for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
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2004, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2006, one customer represented 13% of our revenue.
In the year ended December 31, 2005, 25% of our revenue was generated from two customers. In the year
ended December 31, 2004, one customer represented 12% of our revenue. Management does not believe
that the loss of any single customer will have a material adverse effect on our business or results of
operations. :

Competition

We operate in a fragmented marketplace, competing with a variety of participants in the wireless
mobility market including companies that design systems, provide hardware and software applications,
integrate software and hardware applications, provide consulting services and offer management and
maintenance services. Qur primary competition comes from regional and local firms that are similar to us
in terms of revenue and numbers of employees.

We sell and support mobile point-of-care workstations with over 40,000 of cur units currently in use in
the U.S. healthcare market. In this business, we compete with a variety of companies, including furniture
and fixture distributors and Several nationally known mobile cart manufacturers and distributors. The
larger competitors include Stinger Medical (in business for ten years and the first company to provide
mobile carts to the healthcare industry), Flo (the holder of several patents on mobile computing),
Ergotron, Rubbermaid, NAware, Lionville, Howard Computer, Artomick and Enovate IT.

In the healthcare market, we also compete with device manufacturers, service providers and software
platform companies that offer unique, specialty use products. For example, Palm and Dictaphone compete
for market share in the sales of devices to physicians and other providers, Microsoft and Intel are
positioning for wireless IP platform adoption, while companies like MedQuist and Scribe vie for customers
of specialty use software applications and services. While we maintain our focus on enterprise mobility
solutions, we will encounter these companies in the marketplace selling against us for a portion of the
work-flow and voice-over-IP solution sets.

We encounter the very large consulting firms such as IBM Global Services, Accenture, Deloitte
Consulting, EDS, CSC, First Consulting, and Affiliated Computer Services in both our commercial and
healthcare groups. Many of these national and international consulting firms focus on design and
architecture of wireless networks, and work-flow or process improvement. We believe there are also many
small, local and regional consulting firms offering services similar to the larger firms, as well as site-surveys,
infrastructure support and information technology outsourcing. Each of these participants will continue to
compete with us for our core services around enterprise mobility solutions and mobile managed services.

We compete with handheld mobile computer products companies in our supply-chain solutions
business, includiﬁg,Sym_b_olfMotorola, Intermec, LXE and other makers of tablet computers such as Dell,
HP, Sony and Fujitsu. Symbol/Motorola is a global leader in mobile data management systems and
services with innovative customer solutions based on wireless local area networking for voice and data,
application-specific mobile computing and bar-code data capture.

We also compete with a smaller group of companies that are more solutions oriented, but that are
clearly in the sectors in which we operate including healthcaie, transportation, manufacturing, distribution
and retail. These companies include Wavelink Corporation, Ennovative, Inc.,, and OAT (a recognized
RFID framework provider). This group of companies competes for business that delivers software and
solutions to empower businesses to achieve competitive advantage from the use of RFID. Solution sets
include data and content management, materials management, e-commerce, e-Learning, custom
application and web interface development, and infrastructure management,
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In addition to the foregoing, there are hundreds of firms that operate in a variety of vertical-specific or
technology-centric groupings. Due to the increasing level of market activity related to these two general
arcas, an increasing number of companies are claiming capabilities.

When evaluating our competitive landscape, we consider:

» The large number of RFID and mobile wireless hardware solution providers. Many firms attempt to
differentiate their services by promoting “sotution” integration capabilities. The larger enterprises
understand the value add elements of software integration (either proprietary or 3rd party
integration) as well as service capabilities to integrate and manage. '

* A growing number of private companies are establishing meaningful market presence by leveraging
software integration and solution management capabilities.

« Cross industry penetration seems to be a constant theme for many companies; however, industry
specialization is viewed as an important differentiator.

Product Development

To ensure our ability to identify and develop new technologies and applications for our mobile
workforce technology solution platforms, we have organized a software and technology engineering group
to provide identification, design, programming, testing, quality assurance and implementation support. We
have experienced managers and engineering staff that provide the necessary expertise required to position
us for future growth in our business.

.

Manufacturing

We engage contract manufacturers to produce our mobile point-of-care and point-of-activity
workstations. We currently do not have a long-term contract with the company providing us with the
majority of these products. Most of the manufactured products are shipped directly from the
manufacturing facility to our customer site. Our employees provide on-site customized assembly and
instailation, upon request of our customers.

Employees

As of December 31, 2006, we had 81 employees of which 24 were in sales and marketing, 26 were in
software engineering, quality assurance, and field services, 17 were in operations and customer support,
and 14 were in finance, executive and administrative capacities. We are not subject to any collective
bargaining agreements, and we believe that our relationship with our employees is good.

In addition to full-time employees, we utilize the services of various independent contractors,
primarily for certain product development and foreign sales, marketing and administrative activity.

Available Information

All periodic and currént reports, registration statements, and other filings that we are required to file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), including our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed or furnished
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, are available free
of charge from the SEC’s website (http://www.sec.gov) or public reference room at 450 Fifth Street N.W.,
Washington, DC 20549 (1-800-SEC-0330) or through our website at http://www.infologixsys.com. Such
documents are available as soon as reasonably practicable after electronic filing of the material with the
SEC. Copies of these reports (excluding exhibits) may also be obtained free of charge, upon written
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request to: Investor Relations, InfoLogix, Inc., 101 E. County Line Road, Suite 210, Hatboro,
Pennsylvania, 19040.

Our website address is included in this report for information purposes only. Our website and the
information contained therein or connected thereto are not incorporated into this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

The following corporate governance documents are available free of charge on the Company’s
website: the charters of our Audit, Compensation and Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committees, our Statement on Corporate Governance and our Code of Conduct. Copies of these
corporate governance documents also may be obtained by any shareholder, free of charge, upon written
request to: Corporate Secretary, Infologix, Inc., 101 E. County Line Road, Suite 210, Hatboro,
Pennsylvania, 19040. We also will post on our website any amendments to or waivers of our Code of
Conduct that relate to our directors and executive officers.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

An investment in our common stock involves a number of risks. Before deciding to invest in us or to
maintain or increase your investment, you should carefully consider the risks described below, in addition to the
other information contained in this report and other reports we have filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing our Company. Additional
risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial may also affect our
business operations. If any of these risks are realized, our business, financial condition or results of operations
could be seriously harmed. In that event, the market price for our common stock could decline and you may
lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Relating to our Business and Industry

We are an early-stage company with a limited operating history, which limits the information available to you to
evaluate our business.

Infol.ogix Systems Corporation was formed in 2001. There is limited operating and financial
information to evaluate our historical performance and our future prospects. We face the risks and
difficulties of an early-stage company including the uncertainties of competition, cost increases and delays
in achieving business objectives. There can be no assurance that we will succeed in addressing any or all of
these risks or that our efforts will generate significant revenue or achieve future profitability. The failure to
do so would have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

We have incurred losses in the past and our ability to operate profitability in the future is uncertain.

For the year ended December 31, 2006 we generated revenues of $60.8 million and incurred net losses
of $1.9 million. We have incurred net losses in two out of the last five fiscal years and we may incur
additional losses in the future. Even if we achieve profitability, we may not be able to sustain or increase
profitability on a quarterly or annual basis. If our business and revenues grow more slowly than we
anticipate, our operating expenses exceed our expectations, we are unable to sell our products and services
at acceptable prices relative to our costs, or if we fail to develop and introduce on a timely basis new
products and services from which we can derive additional revenues, our financial results will suffer,

We may need additional financing to fund our operations and finance our growth, but we may be unable to obtain
Jinancing on terms acceptable to us.

Although we believe that the net proceeds from our recently conducted private placement, our credit
facilities and our anticipated cash flows from operations will be sufficient to meet our operating and capital
requirements for at least the next 12 months, we may be required to raise additional capital through either
equity or debt financing to fund our operations and to implement our current or future strategies inctuding
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strategic acquisitions. Factors that could increase our need to seck additional financing include decreased
demand and market acceptance for our products, the inabilityto successfully develop our next-generation
products, competitive pressures resulting in lower pricing, acquisition opportunities, and new product
offerings by our competitors. In addition, when our existing credit facilities expire, we may need to obtain
replacement debt financing, There can be no assurance that additional or replacement debt financing will
be available to us on commercially reasonable terms or at all. If we incur additional debt, our interest
expense would increase. If we raise capital through the sale of equity securities, the percentage ownership
of our existing stockholders would be diluted. In addition; any new equity securities may have rights,
preferences or privileges senior to those of our common stock. If we are unable to obtain additional or
replacement financing, our ability to fund our operations and meet our plans for expansion  would be
adversely affected. : : : :

Our sales and profitability may be affected by changes in economic, business or industry conditions.

. If the economic climate in the U.S. or abroad deteriorates, customers or potential customers could
reduce or delay their technology investments. Reduced or delayed technology investments could decrease
our sales and profitability. In this environment, our customers may experience financial difficulty, cease
operations and fail to budget or reduce budgets for the purchase of our products and professional services.
This may lead to longer sales cycles, delays in purchase decisions, payment and collection, and may also
result in downward price pressures, causing our sales and profitability to decline. In addition, general
economic uncertainty and general declines in capital spending in the information technology sector make it
difficult to predict changes in the purchasing requirements of our customers and the markets we serve.
There are many other factors which could affect our business, including:

o the introduction and market acceptance of new technologies, products and services;
« new competitors and new forms of competition;

o the size and timing of customer orders;

e the size and timing of capital expenditures by our customers;

o adverse changes in the credit quality of our customers and suppliers;

o changes in the pricing policies of, or the introduction of, new products and services by us or our
competitors;

» changes in the terms of our contracts with our customers or suppliers;
» the availability of products from our suppliers; and
« variations in product costs and the mix of products sold.

These trends and factors could adversely affect our business, profitability and financial condition and
diminish our ability to achieve our strategic objectives.

Increasing our profitability is necessary to achieve our strategic objectives.

The industries in which our Healthcare and Enterprise Mobility businesses compete are highly
competitive. To meet our growth objectives, we believe that we need to add and increasingly emphasize
higher-value, proprietary solutions, including software applications and professional services.

There can be no assurance that we will effectively deploy our initiatives or be successful in obtaining
customer acceptance of our current and anticipated higher margin products or developing new products
and solutions with higher margins, and if we do not, we would not meet our strategic objectives. Also, if the
RFID market or other markets in which we are investing do not grow, we may be unable to achieve the
projected margins for these products and solutions.
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In addition, the implementation of our strategic initiatives to improve profitability may have the
unintended effect of straining our operations, increasing operating expenses, and adversely affecting our
profitability. The difficulties associated with implementing these initiatives may place a significant burden
on our management and our operational and financial resources. If we fail to successfully implement these
initiatives or encounter unexpected difficulties during the implementation, our business could be harmed.

We have limited experience in acquiring other businesses and cannot assure you that we will be able to
successfully integrate any businesses, products, technologies or personnel that we might acquire in the future.

We may, from time to time, consider investments in complementary companies, products or
technologies. In the event of any future acquisitions, we could:

¢ issue stock that would dilute our current stockholders’ percentage ownership;

¢ incur debt;

¢ assume liabilities of the acquired business;

* incur expenses related to the impairment of goodwill; or

e incur large and immediate write-offs.

Our operation of any acquired business will also involve numerous risks, including:
¢ problems combining the acquired operations, technologies or products;

¢ unanticipated costs;

¢ diversion of management’s time and attention from our core business;

* adverse effects on existing business relationships with suppliers and customers;

» risks associated with entering markets in which we have no or limited prior experience; and
« potential loss of key employees, particularly those of acquired companies.

We have previously acquired the business and assets of other companies, but we cannot assure you
that we will be able to successfully integrate any businesses, products, technologies or personnel that we
might acquire in the future. Any failure to do so could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

We are dependent on our key industry relationships.

We maintain important relationships with hardware and software technology leaders, including
AeroScout, Dell, Fujitsu, Futura Services, Intermec, JACO, Medical Information Technology, Oracle,
Power Up, Siemens and Symbol/Motorola. These strategic relationships are more than a traditional
supplier relationship and represent an important lead referral service and sales channel for us.

If our partners do not perform adequately, we could experience delays in the development of our
products, which could adversely impact our business.

There can be no assurance that we will continue to be successful in maintaining our relationships with
our partners or that we could find adequate replacements, The loss of any of our partners could result in
the temporary or permanent cessation of a group of products or solutions and result in the loss of a portion
of our existing or anticipated customer base.
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We depend on third-party component suppliers and contract manufacturers to manufacture our products. If these
third parties experience any delay, disruption or quality control problems in their operations, or cease
manufacturing our products, we could lose market share and revenues, and our reputation may be harmed.

A substantial portion of our products are manufactured, assembled, tested and packaged by contract
manufacturers. We rely on several component suppliers and contract manufacturers to procure
components and, in some cases, subcontract engineering work. Some of our products are manufactured by
a single contract manufacturer and if we were to lose the services of this manufacturer, finding a suitable
replacement could prove particularly difficult. We do not have any long-term contracts with any of these
third party component suppliers and contract manufacturers. Product pricing is generally negotiated on an
order-by-order basis. If our component suppliers and contract manufacturers encounter financial or other
business difficulties, if their strategic objectives change, or if they perceive us to no longer be an attractive
customer, they may cease to manufacture our products and our business could be harmed.

The loss of the services of any of our primary contract manufacturers or a material change in terms
could cause a significant disruption in operations and delays in product shipments and adversely impact
cash flow. Qualifying a new contract manufacturer and commencing volume production is expensive and
time consuming.

Our reliance on third-party component suppliers and contract manufacturers also exposes us to the
following risks over which we have limited control:

« inability to procure key required components for our finished products to meet our customer’s
demand;

» unexpected increases in manufacturing and repair costs;

« unexpected reductions in payment terms;

« interruptions in shipments if one of our manufacturers is unable to complete production;

« inability to control the quality of finished products;

« inability to control delivery schedules;

« inability to obtain favorable pricing;

« unpredictability of manufacturing yields; and

« potential lack of adequate capacity to manufacture all or a part of the products we require. .

If we are unable to provide our third-party component suppliers and contract manufacturers with an accurate
forecast of our component and material requirements, we may experience delays in the manufacturing of our
products and the costs of our products may increase.

We provide our third-party component suppliers and contract manufacturers with forecasts of our
demand that they use to determine their material and component requirements. Lead times for ordering
materials and components vary significantly and depend on various factors, such as the specific supplier,
contract terms and demand and supply for a component at a given time. Some of our components require
substantial lead times. If our forecasts are less than our actual requirements, our contract manufacturers
may be unable to manufacture enough products in a timely manner. If our forecasts are too high, our
component suppliers and contract manufacturers may be unable to use the components they have
purchased. Therefore, our cost of producing products may be higher than that of our competitors, due to
an over-supply of higher-priced components. Moreover, if they are unable to use certain components, we
may be required to reimburse them for any losses they incur.
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In many circumstances, we rely upon third parties for technology that is critical to our products, and if we are
unable to continue to license this technology and future technology our ability to offer competitive products could
be harmed and our costs of production could increase.

In many circumstances, we obtain non-exclusive software license rights to technologies from third
parties that are incorporated into and necessary for the operation and functionality of our products.
Because the intellectual property we license is available from third parties, barriers to entry for our
competitors may be lower than if we owned exclusive rights to the technology we license and use. On the
other hand, if a competitor enters into an exclusive arrangement with any of our third-party technology
providers, our ability to develop and sell products containing that technology could be severely limited.
Our licenses often require royalty payments or other consideration to third parties. Our success will
depend in part on our continued ability to have access to these technologies on commercially reasonable
terms. If we are unable to license the necessary technology, we may be forced to acquire or develop
alternative technology of lower quality or performance standards. This could limit and delay our ability 1o
offer competitive products and increase our costs of production. As a result, our profitability, and market
share could be harmed.

Qur industry is highly competitive, and competitive pressures from existing and new companies may have a
materially adverse effect on our business, revenues, growth rates and market share.

Our industry is highly competitive and is influenced by the following:
s advances in technology;

» introduction of new products and services;

¢ evolving industry standards;

¢ product improvements;

+ rapidly changing customer needs;

« intellectual property invention and protection;

e marketing and distribution capabilities;

* competition from highly capitalized companies;

* entrance of new competitors;

e customer budget pressure on information technology spending; and
* price competition.

If we do not keep pace with product and technology advances, our products and services could be
rendered obsolete, which would have a material adverse effect on our competitive position, revenues and
prospects for growth. There is also likely to be continued pricing pressure as competitors attempt to
maintain or increase market share. :

The products manufactured and marketed by us and our competitors in our industry are becoming
more complex. As the technological and functional capabilities of future products increase, these products
may begin to compete with products being offered by companies that have substantially greater financial,
technical, marketing and manufacturing resources than we do. We may not be able to compete successfully
against these new competitots, and competitive pressures may result in a material adverse effect on our
business or profitability.
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If we fail to continue to introduce new products that achieve broad market acceptance on a timely basis, we will
not be able to compete effectively and we will be unable to inerease or maintain sales and profitability.

Our future success depends on our ability to develop and introduce new products and product
enhancements that achieve broad market acceptance. If we are unable to develop and introduce new
products that respond to emerging technological trends and customers’ mission critical needs, our
profitability and market share may suffer. The process of developing new technology is complex and
uncertain, and if we fail to accurately predict customers’ changing needs and emerging technological
trends, our business could be harmed. We must commit significant resources to developing new products
before knowing whether our investments will result in products the market will accept, We may encounter
delays in deploying new or improved products.

We are active in the identification and development of new products and technologies and in
enhancing our current products. However, in the enterprise mobility solutions industry, such activities are
complex and filled with uncertainty. If we expend a significant amount of resources and our efforts do not
lead to the successful introduction of new or improved products, there could be a material adverse effect
on our business, profitability, financial condition and market share.

We may also encounter delays in the manufacturing and production of new products. Additionaily,
new products may not be commercially successful. Demand for existing products may decrease upon the
announcement of new or improved products. Further, since products under development are often
announced before introduction, these announcements may cause customers to delay purchases of any
products, even if newly introduced, until the new or improved versions of those products are available. If
customer orders decrease or are delayed during the product transition, we may experience a decline in
revenue and have excess inventory on hand which could decrease gross profit margins. Our profitability
might decrease if customers, who may otherwise choose to purchase existing products, mstead choose to
purchase lower priced models of new products. Delays or deficiencies in the development, manufacturing,
and delivery of, or demand for, new or improved products could have a negative effect on our business or
profitability.

We may be unsuccessful in expanding our professional services and, as a result, fail to achieve our objectives.

We are in the process of restructuring our professional services in order to expand our service
offerings and enhance our technical expertise. We hope to accomplish that by increasing our in-house
talent pool and introducing new models for support and professional services. We look to leverage new
employees that are skilled in our business to reduce our dependencies on outside assistance. Our initiatives
will include reducing dependence on outside suppliers, determining specific methodologies and processes
for meeting customer needs, conducting in-house training sessions, and leveraging business partnerships to
increase professional services opportunities. There is no assurance that the restructuring will improve the
sales and profitability of our professional services.

The success of our business depends on the continuing development, maintenance and operation of our
information technology systems. If we fail to maintain and upgrade our information technology systems to meet
the demands of our customers and protect our information technology systems against risks that we cannot
control, our business may be adversely affected.

We compete for customers based in part on the flexibility and sophistication of our information
technology systems. The failure of the hardware or software that supports these systems, the loss of data
contained in the systems or the inability to access or interact with our website or connect with our
customers electronically, could significantly disrupt our operations, prevent customers from placing orders
with us or cause us to lose customers. If our information technology systems are unable to handle
additional volume as our business and scope of professional services grow, our service levels and operating
efficiency will likely decline. In addition, we expect that our customers will continue to demand
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increasingly sophisticated information technology systems from us. If we fail to hire or retain qualified
persons to implement, maintain and protect our information technology systems, or if we fail to upgrade or
replace our information technology systems to handle increased volumes and levels of complexity and meet
the increased demands of our customers, our business may be adversely affected.

Our information technology systems are dependent upon global communications providers, web
browsers, telephone systems and other aspects of the Internet infrastructure which are vulnerable to a
variety of threats including computer viruses and natural disasters. There can be no guarantee that the
steps we have taken to protect against those threats will be effective. Furthermore, although we have
redundant systems at a separate location to back up our primary application systems, there can be no
assurance that these redundant systems will operate properly if and when required. Any disruption to or
infiltration of our information technology systems could significantly harm our business and profitability.

If we are unable to protect our intellectual property rights or if third 'parties assert we are in violation of their
intellectual property rights, we could be prevented from selling our products, the time and attention of
management could be diverted from operating the business and our ability to attract new customers and retain
current customers could be hampered, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operation.

We have a patent portfolio of issued and pending patent applications both domestically and abroad,
principally relating to the design of mobile point-of-activity and mobile point-of-care workstations, and a
proprietary powcer solution for these workstations and wearable computers. We have also developed other
proprietary sclutions, including form-factor PC technologics designed specifically for low power
consumption, handheld point-of-sale devices and several customized software applications. We protect our
proprietary information and technology through licensing agreements, third-party nondisclosure
agreements and other contractual provisions, as well as through patent, trademark, copyright and trade
secret laws in the U.S. and similar laws in ather countries. There can be no assurance that these protections
wili be available in all cases or will be adequate to prevent our competitors from copying, reverse
engineering or otherwise obtaining and using our technology, proprictary rights or products.

There can be no assurance that our competitors will not independently develop technologies that are
substantially equivalent or superior to our technology or design around our proprietary rights. In each
case, our ability to compete and to receive licensing revenues could be significantly impaired. To prevent
substantial unauthorized use of our intellectual property rights, it may be necessary to prosecute actions
for infringement and/or misappropriation of our proprietary rights against third parties. Any such action
could result in significant costs and diversion of our resources and management’s attention, and there can
be no assurance that we will be successful in such action. In addition, third parties may seek to challenge,
invalidate or circumvent our patents, trademarks, copyrights and trade secrets, or applications for any of
the foregoing. Furthermore, the faws of certain countries in which our products are or may be licensed do
not protect our proprietary rights to the same extent as the laws of the U.S.

Third parties may assert claims of infringement of intellectual property rights against us or against our
partners for which we may be liable under certain indemnification arrangements. Due to the rapid pace of
technological change in our industry, much of our business and many of our products rely on proprietary
technologies of third parties, and we may not be able to obtain, or continue to obtain, licenses from such
third parties on reasonable terms. The failure to obtain a license on commercially reasonable terms or the
entry of an injunction that impairs our ability to market certain products or services could have a material
adverse affect on our business, profitability or financial condition. Any litigation regarding patent and
other intellectual property rights could have a material adverse cffect on our business and our ability to
compete.

We may also be subject to claims from customers for indemnification. Any resulting litigation,
regardless of its resolution, could result in substantial costs and diversion of resources. If it were
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determined that our products infringe upon the intellectual property rights of others, we would need to
obtain licenses from these parties or reengineer our products in order to avoid infringement. We might not
be able to obtain the necessary licenses on acceptable terms or at all, or to reengineer our products
successfully, Moreover, if we are sued for infringement and lose the suit, we could be required to pay
substantial damages or be enjoined from licensing or using the infringing products or technology. Any of
the foregoing could cause us to incur significant costs and prevent us from selling our products.

Our products are complex and may contain undetected and unexpected defects, errors or failures.

Substantial product defects could result in product recalls, repairs, warranties or an increased amount
of product returns, loss of market acceptance and damage to our reputation, all of which could increase
our costs, cause us to lose sales and have a material adverse effect on our profitability. Product defects
might also result in claims against us by our customers or others. In addition, the occurrence of any defects
or errors in these products could result in: failure to achieve market acceptance and loss of market share,
cancellation of orders, difficulty in collecting accounts receivable, increased service and warranty costs in
excess of our estimates, diversion of resources, and increased insurance costs and other losses to our
business or to end-users. :

Incompatibilities, defects or bugs may not be detected until our customers begin to install the products
or thereafter. We may need to modify the design of our new or improved products if they have
incompatibilities, defects or bugs, which could result in significant expenditures as we seek to remedy the
problems, delays in the purchase of the products or canceled orders.

Armed hostilities, terrorism, natural disasters, or public kealth issues could harm our business.

Armed hostilities, terrorism, natural disasters, or public health issues, whether in the U.S. or abroad,
could cause damage or disruption to us, our suppliers or customers, or could create political or economic
instability, any of which could harm our business. Any such attacks could, among other things, cause
further instability in financial markets and could directly, or indirectly through reduced demand, negatively
affect our facilities and operations or those of our customers or suppliers.

We depend on retaining our existing senior management team and recruiting additional senior managers in order
to be successful, and the loss or failure to recruit key executives could materially and adversely affect our business.

Our current and future performance depends, in significant part, upon recruiting and retaining
exceptional senior managers, whose knowledge, leadership and technical expertise would be difficult to
replace. Our success also depends in part upon the ability of our executives to work effectively together
and with the rest of our employees to continue to develop our technology and manage the operation and
growth of our business. The unplanned loss of the services of one or more of our executives could have an
adverse effect on our business and profitability. We also must continue to develop and retain a strong core
group of senior executives if we are to realize our goal of growing our business and sustaining profitability.
We cannot assure you that we will be successful in our efforts.

Our business is subject to the budget cycles of our customers.

Our business is subject to the budget cycles of our customers in various vertical markets such as
healthcare, transportation and retail. This may cause significant quarterly fluctuations in our financial
results. Generally, sales are sequentially down in the first quarter from the fourth quarter, higher in the
second quarter, flat or slightly higher or lower in the third quarter, and strongest in the fourth quarter.

Our products are subject to certain government regulations and noncompliance with, or a change in, those
regulations could have a material adverse effect on our profitability and financial condition.

Our products are subject to regulations by federal, state and local agencies in the U.S. and agencies in
certain foreign countries where our products are manufactured or sold. There can be no assurance of
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continued compliance if these regulations were to change. Regulatory changes may require us to make
modifications to certain of our products in order for us to continue to be able to manufacture and market
our products, which would result in unanticipated costs and delays. Noncompliance with respect to these
regulations, or delays resulting from modifications in order to come into compliance, could have a material
adverse effect on our profitability and financial condition.

Our growth objectives depénd on our ability to successfully manage potential international expansion.

We intend o expand our geographic presence to global markets, including Europe, Asia, and other
emerging centers of healthcare and commercial activity. This expansion will require significant
management attention and financial resources. We currently have limited experience in marketing and
distributing our products internationally and in developing versions of products that comply with local
standards. We may also not be able to maintain or increase international market demand for our products.
International operations are subject to other inherent risks, including foreign government regulation of
technology or unexpected changes in regulatory and customs requirements, difficulty and delays in
accounts receivable collection, difficulties and costs of staffing and managing foreign operations, reduced
protection for intellectual property rights, foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, and taxation
consegquences.

The management and former stockholders of InfoLogix Systems Corporation beneficially own a substantial
number of shares of our common stock, which give them significant control over certain major decisions.

As of December 31, 2006, the management and former stockholders of InfoLogix Systems
Corporation beneficially own, in the aggregate, approximately 53.0% of our outstanding common stock.
This figure does not reflect the increased percentages that management would own after exercise of
warrants that were issued in connection with the merger or may own in the event of any exercises of
options that have been granted under our employee incentive plans. The interests of our existing
stockholders and management may differ from the interests of other stockhotders. As a result, our current
stockholders and management will have significant control over all corporate actions requiring stockholder
approval, irrespective of how our other stockholders may vote, including the following actions:

¢ elect or defeat the election of our directors;

« amend or prevent amendment of our certificate of incorporation or bylaws,

« cffect or prevent a merger, sale of assets or other corporate transaction; and

* control the outcome of any other matter submitted to the stockholders for vote.

The stock ownership of our current stockholders and management may discourage a potential
acquirer from making a tender offer or otherwise attempting to obtain control of us, which in turn could
reduce our stock price or prevent our stockholders from realizing a premium over the market price of our
stock.

We recently became subject to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
which can be expensive,

We recently became a public reporting company and, accordingly, we are subject to the information
and reporting requirements of the Exchange Act and other federal securities laws, including compliance
with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. The costs of preparing and filing annual, quarterly and periodic reports,
proxy statements and other information required by the SEC (including legal and accounting fees) and
furnishing audited reports to stockholders will cause our expenses to be higher than they would be if we
were a privately-held company. In addition, we will incur substantial expenses in connection with the
preparation of a registration statement for the resale of our common stock purchased by investors in the
private placement.
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It can be time consuming, difficult and costly for us to develop and implement the internal controls
and reporting procedures required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. We may need to hire additional financial
reporting, internal controls and other finance personnel in order to develop and implement appropriate
internal controls and reporting procedures. If we are unable to comply with the internal controls
requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, we may not be able to obtain the independent accountant
certifications required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

Risks Relating to our Indebtedness

The covenants in our credit facility may restrict our operations, which could inhibit our ability to execute our
growth strategy and have a negative effect on our results of operations.

We have entered into a loan and security agreement with Sovereign Bank that provides the Company
with an $8.5 million line of credit as well as two term loans with principal amounts of $1.5 million and $1.0
million, respectively. The line of credit must be repaid on March 15, 2009. The term loans are repayable in
equal consecutive monthly installments with a final balloon payment duc on March 15, 2009. The loan and
security agreement contains restrictions and covenants and requires us to maintain specified financial
ratios and tests. For example, the loan and security agreement restricts our ability to, among other things,
incur additional indebtedness, acquire other companies or the assets of other companies and pay dividends
without their consent. If we fail to meet or satisfy any of the restrictions, covenants, financial ratios or
financial tests, we would be in default under the loan and security agreement. The credit facility is secured
by all of the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries, as well as a pledge of the common stock of
InfoLogix Systems Corporation {which is the entity through which we conduct substantially all of our
operations). An event of default under the loan and security agreement would give the lender the right to
declare all amounts outstanding under the credit facility due and payable and enforce its rights to foreclose
on the collateral sccuring the loans,

The restrictions contained in the loan and security agreement could inhibit our ability to obtain
financing and engage in other business activities that are important to our business and our growth
strategy, which could inhibit our ability to grow our business and increase our revenues.

Our indebtedness could adversely impact our financial condition.

As of December 31, 2006, we had approximately $15.9 million of total indebtedness, including short-
term debt and approximately $6 million under our credit facility. We may increase the amount of our
indebtedness in the future, which could have an important impact on our stockholders. An increase in our
indebtedncss could: '

‘e cause us to violate certain provisions contained in our credit facility;

¢ make us more vulnerable to economic downturns and limit our flexibility to plan for or react to
changes in business and economic conditions;

« limit our ability to withstand competitive pressures through increases in our cost of capital; and
» harm our ability to obtain additional debt or equity financing in the future.

" If any of the foregoing were to occur, our ability to execute our growth strategy would be impaired and
our results of operations could be harmed.
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Risks Relating to eur Common Stock

Applicable SEC rules governing the trading of “penny stocks” may limit the liquidity of our common stock which
may affect its trading price,

Our common stock is quoted on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board, and may trade below $5.00 per
share; in which case, our common stock would be considered a “penny stock™ and subject te SEC rules and
regulations that impose limitations upon the manner in which our shares may be publicly traded. These
regulations require the delivery, before any transaction involving a penny stock, of a disclosure schedule
explaining the penny stock market and the associated risks. Under these regulations, certain brokers who
recommend such securities to persons other than established customers or certain accredited investors
must make a special written suitability determination regarding such a purchaser and receive such
purchaser’s written agreement to a transaction before a sale. These regulations could have the effect of
limiting the trading activity of our common stock and reducing the liquidity of an investment in our
common stock. Therefore, our stockholders may find it difficult to obtain accurate quotations of our
common stock and/or to sell their shares.

The market price of our commaon stock is likely to be highly volatile and subject to wide fluctuations.

The market price of our common stock is likely to be highly volatile and could be subject to wide
fluctuations in response to a number of factors that are beyond our control, including:

« announcements of new products or services by our competitors;

¢ quarterly variations in our revenues and operating cxpenses;

« announcements of technological innovations or new products or professional services by us; and
« sales of common stock by our founders or other selling stockholders.

There may be a limited public market for our securities and we may fail to qualify for the NASDAQ Stock Market
LLC or other listing.

Although we intend to apply for listing of our common stock on The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC,
there- can be no assurance if and when initial listing criteria will be met or if such application will be
granted or that the trading of our common stock will be sustained. If our common stock fails to qualify for
initial or continued inclusion in The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC system or for initial or continued listing
an a registered stock exchange, trading, if any, in our common stock would then continue to be conducted
on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board or in what are commonly referred to as “pink sheets.” As a
result, our stockholders may find it more difficult to dispose of, or to obtain accurate quotations as to the
market value of our common stock, and our common stock would become substantially less attractive for
margin foans, for investment by financial institutions, as consideration in future capital raising transactions
or other purposes. An active public market for shares of our common stock may not develop, or if one
should develop, it may not be sustained. Therefore, our stockholders may not be able to find purchasers for
their shares of our common stock.

We do not expect to pay dividends for the foreseeable future.

We currently intend to retain any future earnings to support the development and expansion of our
business and do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Any payment of future
dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors after taking into account various factors,
including but not limited to our financial condition, operating results, cash needs, growth plans and the
terms of any credit agreements that we may be a party to at the time. Accordingly, our stockholders must
rely on sales of their common stock after price appreciation, which may never occur, as the only way to
realize their investment. Investors seeking cash dividends should not purchase our common stock.
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Failure to achieve and maintain effective internal controls could have a material adverse effect on our business,
operating results and stock price.

Effective internal controls, particularly those related to revenue recognition, are necessary for us to
produce reliable financiat reports and are important in helping prevent financial fraud. If we are unable to
achieve and maintain adequate internal controls, our business and operating results could be harmed. We
are also beginning to evaluate how to document and test our internal control procedures to satisfy the
requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the related rules of the Securities and
Exchange Commission, which require, among other things, our management to assess annually the
effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting beginning with our Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2007 and our registered public accounting firm to issue a report on that assessment
beginning with our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008. During the course of this
documentation and testing, we may identify deficiencies that we may be unable to remediate before the
requisite deadline for those reports. If our management or our registered public accounting firm were to
conclude in their reports that our internal control over financial reporting was inadequate, our
stockholders could lose confidence in our reported financial information and the trading price of our stock
could drop significantly.

Provisions in our organizational documents and under Delaware law may delay or prevent aftempts by our
stockholders to change our management and hinder efforts to acquire a controlling interest in us.

Certain provisions of our bylaws are intended to strengthen the Board’s position in the event of a
hostile takeover attempt. These provisions have the effect of providing our board of directors with the sole
power to fill vacancies on our board of directors and providing that stockholders may only call a special
meeting by the request, in writing, of stockholders owning individually or together ten percent or more of
the entire capital stock of the corporation issued and outstanding and entitled to vote.

In addition, Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law prohibits a publicly held Delaware
corporation from engaging in a business combination with an interested stockholder, generally a person
which together with its affiliates owns or within the last three years has owned 15% of our voting stock, for
a period of three years after the date of the transaction in which the person became an interested
stockholder, unless the business combination is approved in a prescribed manner. Accordingly, Section 203
may discourage, delay or prevent a change in control of our company.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

Our headquarters are located in Hatboro, Pennsylvania in approximately 25,240 square feet of leased
space. This facility accommodates our executive office, customer support, warehouse, development and
shipping operations. The term of the lease commenced on Qctober 8, 2004 with an initial term of 85
months and an option to extend the lease term for up to one additional period of five years. The initial
annual base rent is approximately $167,000. The base rent is increased 2% annually effective on the annual
anniversary of the lease commencement date each year. We are also responsible for payments of common
area operating expenses for the premises.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are not a party to any legal proceedings, the adverse outcome of which, individually or in the
aggregate, management believes would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
or results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None
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PART I1

Item 5.  Market for the Company’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities

Market Information

Qur common stock is quoted on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board under the symbol “IFLG”. The
table below sets forth the high and low bid prices of our common stock on the Qver-the-Counter Bulletin
Board during 2006: .

Hip Low
2006
First QUAMtEr .. ..ottt e e $N/A  SN/A
Second QUAamEr . ..oour it e e 1.57 02
Third Quarter. ... ... i e e e .63 .16
Fourth Quarter .. ... . it ittt ainaeann 8.75 A7

The quotations set forth in the table above reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-
down or commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions. Our common stock was not
quoted on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board during 2005 or the first quarter of 2006. .

Holders of Common Stock

As of March 21, 2007, we had approximately 134 holders of record of common stock and 23,595,663
shares of common stock outstanding.

Dividends

We have not paid cash dividends and do not anticipate paying cash dividends in the foreseeable
future. The declaration and payment of dividends is restricted in accordance with covenants related to our
$8.5 million asset-based credit facility with Sovereign Bank which we initially entered into in March 2006
and which expires in March 2009. The restriction on dividends will remain during the term of the loan
agreement. We expect to utilize any future earnings to finance our operations. The actual amount of any
dividends that may be paid in the future will be subject to the discretion of our board of directors and will
depend on our operations, financial and business requirements and other factors.

Equity Compensation Plans

The following table summarizes our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2006:

Number of shares
Number of shares to be Weighted average remaining available
issued upon exercise of exercise price of for future issuance
outstanding options, outstanding options, under equity
Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rights compensation plans
Equity compensation plans approved by
stockholders ........................ 2,112,000 $2.00 1,748,000
Equity compensation plans not approved by ‘
stockhokders ...........oviveinnnnnn.. 2,650,000(1) . 8200 -
Total......cooiii 4,762,000 $2.00 1,748,000

(1) For a description of the terms of the warrants pursuant to which these shares are issuable, please see
“Note O—Stock Based Compensation Expense” to the company’s financial statements included in
this report.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents selected financial data for the last five years of the operation of our
business. This information should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and
Notes thereto in Item 8 and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” in Item 7. The selected financial data for fiscal years 2002, 2003, 2004, 2005 and 2006 have
been derived from the Company’s financial statements which have been audited by independent auditors.
The proforma data is derived from New Age Translation, Inc.’s (the predecessor to InfoLogix, Inc.)
unaudited financial statements for the nine month period ended August 31, 2006, and InfoLogix’s audited
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Fiscal Year
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
(audited)
(in thousands, except per share data)

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:

REVEIUES . . ettt eeianns $25,061 $28,391 $46,115 $55,472 $60,786

Costof revenues. . ......oovvvviiniiininnn ns, 20,072 22263 34,793 42605 45,837

Gross profit. .......o.coiiiiiiiiiiiiii i 4,989 6,128 11,322 12,867 14,950

Operating income (loss) .. .............ooount. 542 (457 1,146 1,206 (2,948)

Income (loss) before income taxes ............. 439 (672) 864 681 {3,556)
PRO FORMA DATA (unaudited):

Provision for income taxes (1) ................. 171 (262) 372 313 (1,399)

Net income (108S). . ...oooviiiieii i, 268 (410) 492 368 (2,157)

Net income (loss) per common share (2)........ 0.01 (.02) 0.02 0.02 (0.09)

Common shares outstanding . ................. 23,596 23,596 23,596 23,596 23,596
OTHER DATA:

Dividends (3) ......oooiiiiiiiiiii $ 120 $§ 363 $§ 20 $ 170 § 740

As of December 31,
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
(audited) )

BALANCE SHEET DATA:

Total AS5ELS .o v i it e 9,114 8985 12,171 15,167 31,813

Longtermdebt...........oooiin i 743 730 921 533 1,325

Total stockholders’ equity. ............ ...l 426  (609) 235 745 15,888

(1) Un-audited pro-forma tax provision as if the Company was a taxable entity for each of the five years in
the period ended December 31.

(2) Un-audited pro-forma earnings per share calculation. See Note A of the Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements for information concerning the calculation of net income or loss per common
share.

(3) Related only to amounts paid to stockholders with respect to taxes payable due to the Company filing
its Federal and state income tax returns as a Sub-Chapter S Corporation. Prior to the Merger
discussed in Note B of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, any income tax liability
from its operations was payable directly by its shareholders.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is intended
to assist you in understanding our financial condition and results of operations. This discussion and
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analysis should be read in conjunction with our financial statements and the notes thereto included
elsewhere in this report. Many of the amounts and percentages presented in this discussion and analysis
have been rounded for convenience of presentation.

Overview

- We provide mobile workforce technology solutions to customers in the healthcare and commercial
sectors in North America. Our business is organized to provide consulting, business software applications,
managed services, mobile workstations, devices and other hardware products, and wireless
communications infrastructure. OQur professional services and products utilize proprietary software and
RFID technologies that enhance workflow and customer care using real-time information. We deliver our
products and professional services to customers  utilizing mobile applications that run on handheld
computers, cell phones, tablet computing devices and mobile workstations, and that operate with existing
enterprise software solutions.

OPT Acquisition LLC is a wholly owned subsidiary of InfoLogix. OPT Acquisition LLC provides
proprietary learning technologies for business-to-business applications. Embedded Technologies, LLC was
acquired by us on February 11, 2004. Embedded Technologies, LLC provides mobile computing solutions
through the use of wearable computers. We consolidate OPT Acquisition LLC and Embedded
Technologies, LLC for financia! reporting purposes.

Characteristics of our revenue and expenses

We generate our revenue through the resale of wireless and mobile hardware and systems, including
computers, peripherals, and related products under which the revenue is recognized. Sales revenue on
product is recognized when both the title and risk of loss transfer to the customer, generally upon
shipment. We also generate revenue from the sale of extended warranties on certain components. Revenue
from the. sale of component warranties is recognized upon execution of the warranty agreement. There is
no associated warranty risk as we have contracted with a third party to fully assume all risks and
obligations. We also generated revenue from professional services, primarily on a project basis, under
which revenue from the sale of our proprictary learning technologies is recognized upon acceptance of our
deliverables by clients.

Payments received in advance of services performed are recorded as deferred revenue. Certain
contract payment terms may result in customer billing occurring at a pace slower than revenue recognition.
The resulting revenue recognized in excess of amounts billed and project cost is included in prepaid
expenses and other assets on our balance sheet.

Cost of revenue primarily consists of all expenses that are directly attributable to our business units
and include the costs associated with the purchase, for resale, of wireless and mobile hardware and
systems, including computers, peripherals, and related products. Fluctuations in our gross margin may
occur due to changes in our ability to obtain discounts on product sales or our ability to negotiate higher
margins on sales contracts with large customers. -

Sales and marketing expenses primarily consist of the salaries, benefits, travel and other costs of our
sales and marketing teams, as well as marketing initiatives and business development expenses. General
and administrative expenses primarily consist of the costs attributable to the support of our operations,
such as: costs related to information systems, salaries, expenses and office space costs for executive
management, inside sales, warehousing, technical support, financial accounting, purchasing, administrative
and human resources personnel, insurance, recruiting fees, legal, accounting and other professional
services.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Policies

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), which requires us to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Critical accounting policies are
those that require the application of management’s most difficult, subjective, or complex judgments, often
because of the need to make estimates about the cffect of matters that are inherently uncertain and that
may change in subsequent periods. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management has
made estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilitics at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. In
preparing the financial statements, management has utilized available information, including our past
history, industry standards and the current economic environment, among other factors, in forming its
estimates and judgments, giving due consideration to materiality. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. In addition, other companies may utilize different estimates, which may impact the
comparability of our results of operations to those of companies in similar businesses. We believe that of
our significant accounting policies, the following may involve a higher degree of judgment and estimation.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, OPT Acquisition, LLC and Embedded Technologies, LLC. All significant intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first in, first out
method.

The Company periodically reviews its inventories and makes provisions as necessary for estimated
obsolescence and slow-moving goods. The amount of such markdown is equal to the difference between
cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demands, selling
prices and market conditions.

Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company assesses the potential impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. An asset’s value is impaired if
management’s estimate of the aggregate future cash flows, undiscounted and without interest charges,
to be generated by the asset are less than the carrying value of the asset. Such cash flows consider factors
such as expected future operating income and historical trends, as well as the effects of demand and
competition. To the extent impairment has occurred, the loss is measured as the excess of the
carrying amount of the asset over the estimated fair value of the asset. Such estimates require the use of
judgment and numerous subjective assumptions, which, if actual experience varies, could result in material
differences in the requirements for impairment charges.

Intangible assets

The Company accounts for its intangible assets in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. The costs of successful registrations for
patents are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which is generally three years, using the
straight-line method. The costs of unsuccessful registrations are charged to expense. Acquired technology
is recorded at its fair value at the date of acquisition and amortized over the estimated useful lives of the
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assets, which is generally five years, using the straight-line method. Developed technology is also amortized
using the straight-line method, generally over five years. License fees are amortized over the license period
using the straight-line method.

Software capitalization

The Company capitalizes certain costs related to the acquisition and development of software and
amortizes these costs using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the software which is
three to five years. In accordance with SFAS 86, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to be Sold,
Leased or Otherwise Marketed, the Company expenses as incurred those costs incurred prior to achieving
technological feasibility.

Revenue recognition

Revenue consists primarily of sales of wireless products. Sales revenue is recognized when both the
title and risk of loss transfer to the customer, generally upon shipment. The Company also realizes revenue
from the sale of component warranties on their wireless mobile products as well as from the sale of
proprietary learning technologies. Warranty revenue is recognized upon execution of the warranty
agreement. There is no associated warranty risk as the Company has contracted with another party to fully
assume all risks and obligations. Revenue from the sale of proprietary learning technologies is recognized
upon delivery and acceptance by the customer.

Income taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS 109, Accounting for Income Taxes.
Under SFAS 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of existing assets and liabilities, and are measured
at the prevailing enacted tax rates that will be in effect when these differences are settled or realized.
SFAS 109 also requires that deferred tax assets be reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than
not that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized.

Stock based compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 123(R), Share-Based
Payment, under the modified prospective method. SFAS 123(R) eliminates accounting for share-based
compensation transactions using the intrinsic value method prescribed under APB Opinion 25, Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees, and requires instead that such transactions be accounted for using a fair-
value-based method. Under the modified prospective method, the Company is required to recognize
compensation cost for share-based payments to employees based on their grant-date fair value from the
beginning of the fiscal period in which the recognition provisions are first applied. For periods prior to
adoption, the financial statements are unchanged, and the pro forma disclosures previously required by
SFAS 123, as amended by SFAS 148, will continue to be required under SFAS 123(R) to the extent those
amounts differ from those in the statement of operations.

Non-employee stock based compensation

The cost of stock based compensation awards issued to non-employees for services are recorded at
either the fair value of the services rendered or the instruments issued in exchange for such services,
whichever is more readily determinable, using the measurement date guidelines enumerated in Emerging
Issues Task Force (“EITF”) 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than
Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services.
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Results of Operations ) _
Year ended December 31, 2006 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Revenues were $60.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to $55.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2005, an increase of $5.3 million or 9.6%. The increase in revenue was partially
due to the continued expansion of sales of our mobile point-of-care solutions in healthcare and our
e-Learning services, and partially offset by a decrease in the overall number of third-party wireless
hardware implementations in our commercial business..

Our cost of sales was $45.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to $42.6 million
for the year ended December 31, 2005, an increase of $3.2 million or 7.6%. Our gross profit was
$14.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to $12.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005, an increase of approximately $2.0 million or 16.2%, resulting in a gross margin of
24.6% in 2006, up from 23.2% in 2005. The increase in our gross margin is the result of increased sales of
our more profitable mobile workstation hardware, offset by a decrease in the sale of third-party hardware.

Our selling, general and administrative expenses were $17.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2006, compared with $11.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, an increase of $6.2 million or
53.5%. These expenses increased in 2006 as the result of approximately $0.8 million related to the reverse
merger (inciuding one-time bonuses paid to exccutives as the result of the reverse merger and financing
transactions), and $2.8 million of FAS 123R compensation expenses incurred as the result of issuing
warrants to executives related to bonuses earned from completion of the reverse merger and financing
transactions, warrants issued to certain advisors to the Company as the result of the merger, and incentive
stock options granted to employees.

Our net interest expense, which is derived from our credit line and term loan and stockholders’ loans,
and off-set by interest earned on cash and cash equivalents was $0.6. million for the year ended
December 31, 2006, compared to 3$0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, an increase of
$0.1 million or 15.9%. Net interest expense increased as a result of greater amounts outstanding under our
asset-based hine of credit facility and increasing our term loans. Interest expense was partially offset by
interest income in 2006 as the result of an increase in cash due to the previously discussed financing
transaction.

Qur depreciation and amortization expense increased to $1.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2006 from $1.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, an increase of $0.3 million or 26.3% as the
result of a greater number of demonstration units deployed to our expanded sales force.

Our net loss was $1.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared with net income of
$0.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, a decrease of approximately $2.5 million. Net income
declined primarily due to the merger, one-time bonuses paid to executives as a result of the merger and
financing transactions, and FAS 123R compensation expenses incurred as the result of issuing warrants to
executives telated to bonuses due as the result of the reverse merger and private placement transactions,
warrants issued to certain advisors to the Company as the result of the merger, and incentive stock options
granted to employees. '

In the year ended December 31, 2006 and through November 29, 2006, our operating subsidiary
Infol.ogix Systems Corporation elected to be taxed under the provisions of Sub-Chapter S of the Internal
Revenue Code whereby our individual stockholders reported their share of the corporate income on their
personal federal and state income tax returns. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, we
distributed $0.7 million and $0.2 million respectively to our stockholders for the payment of taxes. As a
result of the merger, InfoLogix Systems Corporation Sub-Chapter S Corporation status was terminated on
November 30, 2006. In accordance with SFAS 109, when the Company changes its tax status from a
nontaxable corporation to a taxable corporation, deferred tax assets and liabilitics are recognized for
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timing diffcrences at the date that a nontaxabte enterprise becomes a taxable enterprise. As a result, the
Company recorded a net deferred tax asset of $151,760 with the offset being recorded as an income tax
benefit in the statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2006.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had net operating losses (“NOL”) of approximately $608,000
which will be available to offset future taxable income. Included in the NOL’s noted above are losses of
$65,000 generated by New Age Translation, Inc., the predecessor to InfoLogix, Inc., which are subject to
restrictions under Internal Revenue Code Section 382, due to the change in ownership in that entity.
Therefore, the Company has recorded a valuation allowance against the net operating losses generated by
New Age Translation, Inc. If not used, the NOL’s will expire beginning in the year 2025. The Company’s
state NOL’s will also be subject to expiration in varying years starting in 2013 through 2026.

Year ended December 31, 2005 Compared with the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Revenues were $55.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, compared to $46.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2004, an increase of $9.4 million or 20.3%. The increase in revenuc was partially
due to one large wireless system implementation in our commercial business and the continued expansion
of existing customer relationships as well as new customers, particularly in our healthcare business. '

Our cost of sales was $42.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, compared to $34.8 million
for the year ended December 31, 2004, an increase of $7.8 million or 22.5%. Cost of sales increased as our
revenues increased, resulting in costs of sales 1.4% higher as a percentage of revenue compared to the
same period in 2004 due to sales of less profitable hardware.

Our gross profit was $12.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, compared to $11.3 million
for the year ended December 31, 2004, an increase of $1.5 million or 13.6%.

Our selling and delivery expenses were $6.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, compared
with $6.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, an increase of $0.8 million or 13.1%. These
expenses increased in 20035 primarily due to increased sales commissions refated to higher sales volumes in
the period.

Our general and administrative expenses were $4.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2005,
compared with $4.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, an increase of $0.7 million or 17.1%.
These expenses increased in 2005 as a result of increased rent expense resulting from a new office facility
lease entered into in 2005, an increase in fees incurred for legal services and increases in our insurance
costs.

Our interest expense, which is derived from our credit line and term loan and stockholders’ loans, was
$0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, compared to $0.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004, an increase of $0.2 million or 85.9%. Interest expense increased in 2005 compared to
2004 as a result of expanding our former asset-based line of credit facility with Silicon Valley Bank.

Our depreciation and amortization expense increased to $1.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2005 compared to $0.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, an increase of $0.3 million or 49%.

Our net income was $0.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, compared with $0.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2004, a decrease of $0.2 million or 21.2%. The decrease in our net
income resulted primarily from lower gross profits in the comparable periods.

In the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, we elected to be taxed under the provisions of
Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code whereby our individual stockholders reported their share of
the Company’s corporate income on their personal federal and state income tax returns. For the year
ended December 31, 2005, we distributed $0.2 million to our stockholders for the payment of taxes in
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respect of income generated by the Company and for the year ended December 31, 2004, we distributed
$20,000 to our stockholders for the payment of taxes in respect of income generated by the Company.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2006, we had cash and cash equivalents of approximately $12.9 million, compared to
approximately $0.4 million at December 31, 2005. We have used, and plan to use, such cash for general
corporate purposes, including working capital as well as acquisitions. Net cash used in operating activities
for the period was $2.5 million, primarily the result of net losses from operations. Net cash used in
investing activities was $1.4 million, primarily used to acquire demonstration and office equipment. Net
cash provided by financing activities was $16.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, primarily
due to the completion of the sale of 8,500,000 shares of our common stock for an aggregate of $17,000,000,
the net increase from borrowings under our asset-based line of credit, the proceeds from a term loan from
our senior secured lender, offset by the repayment of unsecured notes to stockholders, principal payments
under the terms of our senior-secured note and, and the distribution of approximately $0.7 million to
stockholders in respect of taxes payable by them as a result of InfoLogix Systems Corporation’s election to
be taxed as an S corporation.

As of December 31, 2006, our significant contractual obligations were as follows:

Payments due by period
Less than - More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years S Years
Long-term debt obligations ............ $2,027,778 $833,333 $1,194,445 0 0
Capital lease obligations.......... S $ 247,351 $116,97% § 130,378 0 0
Operating lease obligations ............ $1,161,293  $223,122 $ 696,624 §241,547 0

We believe that our available funds and the availability under our asset-based line of credit will be
sufficient to meet our capital requirements over the next 12 months; however, we may seck to raise
additional funds through the sale of equity or debt securities or obtaining additional credit facilities. The
sale of additional equity securities or issuance of equity securities in future acquisitions would result in
dilution to our stockholders and the incurrence of debt would result in an increase in our interest expense.
However, there can be no assurance that we will be able to sell additional equity or debt securities, or be
able to obtain financing on acceptable terms, if at all.

Line of Credit and Term Loan

In March 2006, we executed a Loan and Security Agreement with a bank. Under the terms of the
agreement and subsequent amendments, the bank provided us with an $8.5 million line of credit and two
term loans amounting to $1.5 million and $1.0 million, respectively. The proceeds from the loans were used
to pay off existing loans and to provide working capital. The loans are collateralized by all of the tangible
and intangible assets of InfoLogix Systems Corporation, as welt as a pledge of all of the common stock of
InfoLogix Systems Corporation. At December 31, 2006, the outstanding balance of the line of credit is
$6.0 million, and $2.0 million on the two term loans. The loan and security agreement contains certain
financial covenants with which we must comply including: minimum annual and quarterly net income
tests, a fixed-charge coverage ratio, and maximum annual capital expenditures. At December 31, 2006, we
were not in compliance with all of these covenants, however, on March 23, 2007 we entered into an
amendment to the L.oan and Security Agreement which waived the non-compliance with these covenants.
The amendment also lowered the quarterly net income covenant to a cumulative balance of $0 through
September 30, 2007, and adjusted the fixed charge coverage ratio to 1.0 to 1.0 at December 31, 2007 and
1.2 t0 1.0 as of the end of each fiscal quarter thereafter.
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Inflation

To date, the effects of inflation on our financial results have not been significant; however, we cannot
be certain that inflation will not affect us materially in the future.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not currently have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Recent accounting pronouncements:

In September 2006, the SEC issued SAB 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when
Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements (SAB 108). SAB-108 provides interpretive
guidance on how the effects of the carryover or reversal of prior year misstatements should be considered
in quantifying a current year misstatement, The pronouncement prescribes an approach whereby the effect
of all unrecorded identified errors should be considered on all of the financial statements rather than just
either the effect on the balance sheet or the income statement. The Company adopted the provisions of
SAB 108 as of December 31, 2006. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements. '

In June, 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (FIN 48), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax
positions. FIN 48 requires recognition and disclosure in the financial statements of the impact of a tax
position, if that position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on the technical merits
of the position. The provisions are effective for the Company beginning in the first quarter of 2007 with the
cumulative effect, if any, of the change in accounting principle recorded as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting FIN 48 on its
consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
November 13, 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact that SFAS 157 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

The primary objective of our investment activitics is to preserve principal. Our funds are currently
held in checking accounts and money market funds which do not subject us to risk of a Joss of principal due
to changes in prevailing interest rates and in a portfolio of cash and cash equivalents that include
investments in investment-grade securities, such as commercial paper, money market funds, government
debt securities and certificates of deposit with maturities of less than nine months. Some of these securities
may be subject to market risk due to changes in prevailing interest rates, which may cause fluctuations in
market value.

The fair value of our cash and short-term investment portfolio at December 31, 2006, approximated
its carrying value due to the short-term maturities of these investments. The potential decrease in fair
value resulting from a hypothetical 10% increase in interest rates at year-end for our investment portfolio
is not material.

The fair value of our long-term debt at December 31, 2006, including current maturitics, was
approximately $2.0 million. Our long-term debt is set at the prime rate plus 1.0% (9.25% at December 31,
2006).
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
InfoLogix, Inc
Hatboro, Pennsylvania

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of InfoLogix Inc. (the “Company”) as
of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the consolidated statements of operations and stockholders’ equity
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conductéd our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The
Company is fiot required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over
financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We belicve that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of InfoLogix Inc. as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the
consolidated results of its operations and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2006 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Also, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth therein.

ASHER & COMPANY, Ltd.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 23, 2006
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INFOLOGIX, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Currents assets:
Cashand cashequivalents ........... ... ... ... ... ..ol
Accounts and other receivables {net of allowance for doubtfu!
accounts in the amount of $120,000 and $100,000 as of
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively)....................
INventory, MEt. ... ..o e
Prepaid expenses and otherassets .......... ... ... .. Ll
Deferred tax assets—short-term . ........... ... ... ... Ll
Total Current assetS . ... oot e,
Property andequipment, net .. ... i e
Intangible assets, et . ....... ..o it e
Deferred tax assets—long-term. ..... ..o,
Total ASs€ts. . ..ttt e e

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQU]TY

Current liabilities:
Accountspayable . ........ ...
Lineoferedit ..., P
Current portion of notes payable—bank........................
Current portion of notes payable-—stockholders . ................
Current portion of capital lease obligations .....................
Salestaxpayable ... .. .. e
ACCTUEd EXPENSES. L .. e vttt ittty i e
Deferred revenue. ...ttt it e i e

Notes payable—bank, net of current maturities. ...................
Capital lease obligations, net of current maturities ,................
Total liabilities ... ... i
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, par value $.00001; authorized 10,000,000 shares;
none issued or outstanding. ... ... ottt e s
Capital stock, par value $0.0001; authorized 100,000,000 shares;
issued and outstanding 23,595,663 shares and 12,500,000 shares at
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively .. ....................
Additional paid incapital .. ....... ... .. ... i
Retainedearnings . ... ... .. i e e
Total stockholders’equity ............. .. ..o it
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity. ...................

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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December 31, 2006  December 31, 2005
$12,882,044 $ 447,901
11,797,265 10,223,024
2,227,201 "1,912,018
906,793 334,450
311,478 —
28,124,781 12,917,393
1,440,338 1,338,842
871,976 910,782
1,375,486 —
$31,812,581 $15,167.017

$ 6,584,489

$ 7,135,956

5,954,672 4,443 327
833,333 285,714
— 800,000
116,973 116,973 .
342,064 271,390
767,967 649,043
— 186,397
14,599,498 13,888,800
1,194 445 285,714
130,378 247,351
15,924,321 14,421,865
!
236 125
17,802,373 49,875
(1,914,349) 695,152
15,888,260 745,152
$31,812,581 $15,167,017




Revenues. ..

Cost of sales

INFOLOGIX, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Grossprofit. .. ..oovii i
Selling, general arid administrative expenses..............

Operating (loss) income
Interest expense

INterest INCOMIE. .. ot it it i e et caemenniasiansnranans

Income (loss) before income tax benefit
Income tax benefit

Net (10sS) INCOME. . ... ovviiivie e
(Loss) earnings per share:

Diluted. ..

Weighed average shares outstanding:

Basic and diluted

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2006 2005 2004
$60,786,377 $55,472,056  $46,114,627
45,836,514 42,605,150 34,792,507
14,949,863 12,866,906 11,322,120
17,897,567 11,661,138 10,176,068
T(2.947,704) 1,205,768 1,146,052

(664,534)  (525205)  (282,495)
55,788 — —
(3,556,450) 680,563 863,557
1,686,964 — —
$(1,869,4806) $§ 680,563 § 863,557
$  (014) $ 0.05 $ 0.07
$  (0.14) $ 005 $ 0.07
13,503,170 12,500,000 12,500,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Balance at December 31, 2003, ......
Netincome ...vvevviiirnvnvanenes
Dividends paid to Stockholders. ... ..
Balance at December 31, 2004, .. ....
NetinCome «vvvvriveenrvnniennns
Drividends paid to Stockholders. .. ...
Balance at December 31, 2005. ......
Issuance of stock in connection with
TEVEISE METEET .o uvvre v irvevrnn.s
Issuance of common shares for cash. .
Stock based compensation expense. . .
Issuance of warrants for services. . ...
Dividends paid to Stockholders. . . ...
Net (loss)...ovvreviieniiiinn.,
Balance at December 31, 2006.......

INFOLOGIX, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Additional Retained
Capital Paid in Earnings
Stock Shares Capital (deficit) Total

$125 12,500,000 $ 49875 $ (658,968) $ (608,968)
863,557 863,557
(19,873) (19,873)
125 12,500,000 49,875 184,716 234,716
680,563 680,563
(170,127) (170,127
125 12,500,000 49,875 695,152 745,152
26 2,595,663 26
85 8,500,000 14,979,064 14,979,149
2,253,421 2,253 420
520,013 520,013
(740,015)  (740,015)
(1,869,486)  (1,869,486)
$236 23,595,663 $17,802,373 $(1,914,349) $15,888,260

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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INFOLOGIX, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

December 31, December 3,

December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Operating activities:
Netincome (108S). .. ...oiiiiiiniii i $(1,869,486) $§ 680,563 § 863,557
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to operating
cash flow: ‘
Depreciation and amortization . ..................... 1,319,845 1,044,903 701,277
Allowance for doubtful accounts receivable ........... 20,000 — 100,000
Inventory obsolescence. .......ovveieiinr et 123,965 35,000 (65,000)
Loss on Impairment. .. co.vvunninvereareaieerenens — — 304,094
Stock based compensation . .........oiiiiiiaiii s 2,773,434 — —
Deferred income tax benefit .......... ..o it (1,686,964} — —
Changes in:
Accountsreceivable. . ... ... e (1,594,241)  (2,875,262)  (2,455,574)
INVENOTY . oot e (439,148) (91,578) (460,131)
Prepaid eXpenses . .....ouveieii i (572,343) 280,357 (404,593)
Accounts payable. ..o (551,467 1,580,749 1,508,868
Sales tax payable ..o 70,674 . 113,975 (71,554)
ACCTUEA EXPEIISES. ¢ v vt eecine e eacaiean e 118,924 (294,211) 566,978
Deferred revenue. ..ot (186,397) 146,322 (305,602)
Net cash provided by {used in) operating activities. .. (2,473,204} 620,818 282,320
Investing activities:
Acquisition of property and equipment................. (959,487) (790,068) (791,162)
Acquisition of intangible assets ... ............ o (423,048) (498,991) (440,341)
Net cash used in investing activities . ............. (1,382,535) _(1,289,059) _(1,231,503)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from long-termdebt. ... ... 2,500,000 917,892 1,000,000
Repayment of long-termdebt ... (1,160,597) (389,282)  (1,389,744)
Net borrowings from line of credit ................... .. 1,511,345 409,888 1,033,439
Repayment of notes payable—stockholders............. (300,000) — —
Common stock issued for cash, net of offering costs...... 14,979,149 —_ —
Dividends paid to stockholders .. .......... ... ... . h (740,015) (170,127) (19,873)
Net cash provided by financing activities. .. ....... 16,289,882 768,371 623,822
Net change in cash and cash equivalents .................. 12,434,143 100,130 (325,361)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ............ 447,901 347,711 673,132
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year. . ................ $12,882044 § 447901 § 347,771
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:
Cash paid forinterest .........ooviuveeniiiiiiaeans $ 664,543 % 555251 § 282495
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Capital lease obligation incurred for new equipment . .. .. $ 439,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of business

InfoLogix, Inc. (the “Company”} provides mobile workforce technology solutions by enabling real
time data communications anywhere in an enterprise. The Company provides wireless network design,
hardware, software, consulting, system integration and network management solutions.

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements inclhude the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries, OPT Acquisition LLC and Embedded Technologies, LLC. All significant inter-company
balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation,

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the cash flow statements, the Company considers all highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Fair value of financial instruments

The Company used the following methods and assumptions in estimating the fair value disctosures for
financial instruments:

Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying value approximates fair value due to the current maturity of
these instruments,

Long- and short-term debt: The carrying value of the debt is considered to approximate fair value
because the underlying interest rates approximate market rates at the balance sheet date.

Concentrations of credit risk

Financial instruments that subject the Company to credit risk consist of cash equivalents and accounts
receivable.

The Company’s policy is to limit the amount of credit exposure to any one financial institution, and
place investments with financial institutions evaluated as being creditworthy, or in short-term money
market funds which are exposed to minimal interest rate and credit risk. The Company maintains its cash
primarily in investment accounts within large financial institutions. The Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation insures these balances up to $100,000 per bank. The Company has not experienced any losses
on its bank deposits and management believes these deposits do not expose the Company to any significant
credit risk.

The Company grants credit, generally without collateral, to its customers, which are primarily in the
healthcare and commercial markets. Consequently, the Company is subject to potential credit risk related
to changes in economic conditions within those markets. However, management believes that its billing
and collection policies are adequate to minimize the potential credit risk.

The Company has a policy of reserving for uncollectible accounts based on its best estimate of the
amount of probable credit losses in its existing accounts receivable. The Company periodically reviews its
accounts receivable to determine whether an allowance is necessary based on an analysis of past due
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE A—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

accounts and other factors that may indicate that the realization of an account may be in doubt including
historical experience and current economic and market conditions. Account balances deemed to be
uncollectible are charged to the allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted and the
potential for recovery is considered remote.

Inventory

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first in, first out
method.

The Company periodically reviews its inventories and makes provisions as necessary for estimated
obsolescence and slow-moving goods. The amount of such markdown is equal to the difference between
cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demands, selling
prices and market conditions.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is
computed over the lesser of the estimated usefut lives or the lease term of the related assets wsing the
straight line method. Maintenance and repairs that neither add materially to the value of the asset nor
appreciably prolong its useful life are charged to expense as incurred. Gains or losses on the disposal of
property and equipment are included in the determination of income. Useful lives of property and
equipment are as follows:

Demonstration and evaluation equipment .. ...........cciiiiiiiaa 3 years
EQuipment .. ... e e 3 to 5 years
Furniture and fixtures. . ... ...t i e 5 years
Leasehold improvements. ... i e 5 years

Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company assesses the potential impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. An asset’s value is impaired if
management’s estimate of the aggregate future cash flows, undiscounted and without interest charges,
to be generated by the asset are less than the carrying value of the asset. Such cash flows consider factors
such as expected future operating income and historical trends, as well as the effects of demand and
competition. To the extent impairment has occurred, the loss is measured as the excess of the
carrying amount of the asset over the estimated fair value of the asset. Such estimates require the use of
judgment and numerous subjective assumptions, which, if actual experience varies, could result in material
differences in the requirements for impairment charges.

Intangible assets

The Company accounts for its intangible assets in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, The costs of successful registrations for
patents are amortized over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which is generally three years, using the
straight-line method. The costs of unsuccessful registrations are charged to expense. Acquired technology
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NOTE A—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

is recorded at its fair value at the date of acquisition and amortized over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, which is generally five years, using the straight-line method. Developed technology is also amortized
using the straight-line method, generally over five years. License fees are amortized over the license period
using the straight-line method.

Software capitalization

The Company capitalizes certain costs related to the acquisition and development of software and
amortizes these costs using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the software which is
three to five years. In accordance with SFAS 86, Accounting for the Costs of Compute Software to be Sold,
Leased or Otherwise Marketed, the Company expenses as incurred those costs incurred prior to achieving
technological feasibility.

Revenue recognition

Revenue consists primarily of sales of wireless products. Sales revenue is recognized when both the
title and risk of loss transfer to the customer, generally upon shipment. The Company also realizes revenue
from the sale of component warranties on their wireless mobile products as well as from the sale of
proprictary learning technologies. Warranty revenue is recognized upon execution of the warranty
agreement. There is no associated warranty risk as the Company has contracted with another party to fully
assume all risks and obligations. Revenue from the sale of proprietary learning technologies is recognized
upon delivery and acceptance by the customer.

Advertising costs

Advertising costs are expensed when incurred and approximated $367,000, $117,000 and $133,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively

In accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) 02-16, Accounting by a Customer (Including a
Reseller) for Certain Consideration Received from a Vendor, certain cooperative advertising reimbursements
are netted against specific, identifiable costs incurred in connection with the selling of the vendor’s
product. Cooperative advertising reimbursement of approximately $92,000, $167,000, and $55,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, were recorded as a reduction of advertising
expense with the net amount included in selling, general and administrative expense in the consolidated
statement of operations.

Income taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS 109, Accounting for Income Taxes.
Under SFAS 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of existing assets and liabilities, and are measured
at the prevailing enacted tax rates that will be in effect when these differences are settled or realized. SFAS
109 also requires that deferred tax assets be reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax asset will not be realized.
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NOTE A—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Stock based compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS 123(R)}, Share-Based
Payment, under the modified prospective method. SFAS 123(R) eliminates accounting for share-based
compensation transactions using the intrinsic value method prescribed under APB Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and requires instead that such transactions be accounted for
using a fair-value-based method. Under the modified prospective method, the Company is required to
recognize compensation cost for share-based payments to employees based on their grant-date fair value
from the beginning of the fiscal period in which the recognition provisions are first applied. For periods
prior to adoption, the financial statements are unchanged, and the pro forma disclosures previously
required by SFAS 123, as amended by SFAS 148, will continue to be required under SFAS 123(R) to the
extent those amounts differ from those in the statement of operations.

Non-employee stock based compensation

The cost of stock based compensation awards issued to non-employees for services are recorded at
either the fair value of the services rendered or the instruments issued in exchange for such services,
whichever is more readily determinable, using the measurement date guidelines enumerated in EITF
96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in
Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services.

Earnings per share

The Company has adopted the provisions of SFAS 128, Earnings per Share. Basic earnings per share is
computed by dividing income or loss available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the period. SFAS 128 also requires a dual presentation of basic and
diluted earnings per share on the face of the statement of operations for all companies with complex
capital structures. Diluted earnings per share reflects the amount of carnings for the period available to
each share of common stock outstanding during the reporting period, while giving effect to all dilutive
potential common shares that were outstanding during the period, such as common share equivalents
that could result from the potential exercise into common stock, The computation of diluted earnings
per share does not assume exercise of securities that would have an anti-dilutive effect on per share
amounts (i.e.,, increasing earnings per share or reducing loss per share). The dilutive effect of
outstanding options are reflected in dilutive earnings per share by the application of the treasury stock
method which recognizes the use of proceeds that could be obtained upon exercise of options and
warrants in computing diluted earnings per share. It assumes that any procceds would be used to
purchase common stock at the average market price during the period. Options will have a dilutive effect
only when the average market price of the common stock during the period exceeds the exercise price of
the options.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.
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Significant estimates are required in accounting for inventory costing, asset valuations and amortization.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Variable interest entities

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation No. 46
(FIN 46), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities. FIN 46 addresses consolidation by business enterprises
of variable interest entities, which are entities that either (a) do no have equity investors with vesting rights
or (b) have equity investors that do not provide sufficient financial resources for the entity to support its
activities. In December 2003, the FASB published FIN 46 (revised December 31, 2003), Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities (FIN 46R). FIN 46R, among other things, deferred the effective date of
implementation for certain entities. The Company adopted FIN 46R in 2004. Adoption of FIN 46R had no
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Recent accounting pronouncements

In September 2006, the SEC issued SAB 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when
Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements. SAB 108 provides interpretive guidance on
how the effects of the carryover or reversal of prior year misstatements should be considered in quantifying
a current year misstatement. The pronouncement prescribes an approach whereby the effect of all
unrecorded identified errors should be considered on all of the financial statements rather than just either
the effect on the balance sheet or the income statement. The Company adopted the provisions of SAB 108
as of December 31, 2006. The adoption of SAB 108 did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

In June, 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in income Taxes—an interpretation
of FASB Statement No. 109 (FIN 48), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax positions, FIN 48
requires recognition and disclosure in the financial statements of the impact of a tax position, if that
position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on the technical merits of the position.
The provisions are effective for the Company beginning in the first quarter of 2007 with the cumulative
effect, if any, of the change in accounting principle recorded as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting FIN 48 on its consolidated
financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for financial statements issucd for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007 and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact that SFAS 157 will have on its consolidated financial statements.

NOTE B—MERGER AND OTHER ACQUISITIONS

On November 22, 2006, New Age Translation, Inc., a Nevada corporation (“New Age-NV”) was
merged with and into New Age Translation, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“New Age-DE™), for the sole
purpose of changing the state of incorporation from Nevada to Delaware pursuant to a Certificate of
Ownership and Merger dated November 22, 2006 and approval by the stockholders on November 22, 2006.
Under the terms of the Certificate of Ownership, each share of New Age-NV was exchanged for
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3.18877518427542 shares of New Age-DE, or an aggregate of 18,539,539 shares. On November 22, 2006,
15,943,876 shares of common stock of New Age-DE were cancelled and 2,595,663 shares of common stock
of New Age-DE remained outstanding.

On November 29, 2006, New Age-DE ¢ntered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger
Agreement”) with Infol.ogix, Inc., a privately held Delaware corporation (“InfoLogix”), and INFLX
Acquisition Corp., a newly formed wholly-owned Delaware subsidiary of New Age-DE (“Merger Sub”),
pursuant to which Merger Sub merged with and into InfolLogix (the “Merger”) on November 29, 2006, As
a result, Infologix is now a wholly owned subsidiary of New Age-DE. In connection with the Merger, New
Age-DE changed its name to “InfoLogix, Inc.” and InfoLogix changed it name to “InfoLogix Systems
Corporation.”

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, each share of Infol.ogix common
stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the closing of the Merger was converted into the right to
receive 25,000 shares of New Age-DE common stock. As a result, 12,500,000 shares of New Age common
stock were issued to the shareholders of InfoLogix. Immediately after closing of the Merger on
November 29, 2004, there were 15,095,663 shares of New Age-DE common stock issued and outstanding,
approximately 82.8% of which shares are currently held by the former stockholders of InfoLogix.

On November 29, 2006, concurrent with the Merger, the Company closed on a private placement of
8,500,000 shares of its common stock to accredited investors, The shares were sold for an aggregate
purchase price of $17,000,000 before costs associated with the private placement of $2,020,825. The
private placement was exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended. See note N
for additional information.

The Merger was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting as a reverse acquisition in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Under this
method of accounting, New Age-DE was treated as the “acquired” company for financial reporting
purposes. In accordance with guidance applicable to these circumstances, this merger was considered to be
a capitai transaction in substance. Accordingly, for accounting purposes, the Merger was treated as the
equivalent of Infol.ogix issuing stock for the net monetary assets of New Age-DE, accompanied by a
recapitalization. All historical share and per share amounts have been retroactively adjustéd to give effect
to the reverse acquisition of InfoLogix and related recapitalization.

In February 2004, the Company acquired certain assets in a transaction accounted for using the
purchase method. The aggregate purchase price of $200,000 was allocated entirely to patented technology
hased on their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition.

NOTE C—INVENTORY

Inventory consists of the following:

December 31, December 31,

2006 2005
Finishedgoods. . ...... ..o i, $2,426,166  $1,987,018
Less: allowance for slow moving and obsolete inventery . . (198,965) (75,000)

$2,227,201  §1912,018
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NOTE D—PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following:

Demonstration and evaluation equipment .............

Equipment ..................
Furniture and fixtures.........
Leasehold improvements......

Less: accumulated depreciation

Depreciation expense was $857,992, $736,503, and $504,177 for the years ended December 31, 2006,

2005 and 2004, respectively.

NOTE E—INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist of the following:

Patents............covvvnv--.
Less: accumulated amortization

Computer software ...........
Less: accurmnulated amortization

Developed technology ........
Less: accumulated amortization

Licensefees .................
Less: accumulated amortization

Total net intangible assets . . ...

Developed technology relates primarily to wearable computer and cart technology which is not
patented. Amortization expense related to intangible assets was $461,855, $308,400, and $197,100 for the

years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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December 31, December 31,
2006 2005
$ 2,477,581 §$ 1,914,116
973,664 577,641
295,425 295,425
40,587 40,587
3,787,257 2,827,769
(2,346,919)  (1,488,927)
$ 1,440,338 § 1,338,842

December 31, December 31,
2006 2005
$ 639,881 $ 639,881
(576921)  (421,876)
62,960 218,005
411,765 153,716
(79,558) (7,643)
332,207 146,073
457,525 457,525
(390,716)  (225,821)
66,809 231,704
515,000 350,000
(105,000) (35,000)
410,000 315,000
$ 871,976 $ 910,782
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Amortization expense subsequent to the year ended December 31, 2006 is as follows:

Years ended December 31: Amount

L $358,444

0 S 255,352

2000 . o e e e e 148,260

2000 . . o e e 60,420

71 P 33,000
NOTE F—DEBT

In March 2006, the Company executed a Loan and Security Agreement with a bank. Under the terms
of the agreement and subsequent amendments, the Bank provided the Company with an $8,500,000 line of
credit and two term loans amounting to $1,500,000 and $1,000,000, respectively. The proceeds from the
loans were used to pay off existing loans and to provide working capital. The loans are collateralized by all
of the tangible and intangible assets of the Company. The bank has imposed financial covenants related to
the loans based on annual and quarterly net income, fixed-charge coverage, and annual capital
expenditures. At December 31, 2006, the Company was not in compliance with the covenants, however, on
March 23, 2007 the Company entered into an amendment to the Loan and Security Agreement which
waived the non-compliance with these covenants. The amendment also lowered the quarterly net income
covenant to a cumulative balance of $0 through September 30, 2007, and adjusted the fixed charge
coverage ratio to 1.0 to 1.0 at December 31, 2007 and 1.2 to 1.0 as of the end of each fiscal quarter
thereafter.

Lines of credit

At December 31, 2006, the outstanding balance of the line of credit is $5,954,672. Outstanding
borrowings against this line of credit bear interest at 1.25% above the prime rate under the credit facility
(9.50% at December 31, 2006). The loan and security agreement contains certain financial covenants with
which the Company must comply including: minimum annual and quarterly net income tests, fixed-charge
coverage ratio, and maximum annual capital expenditures. At December 31, 2006, the Company was not in
compliance with the covenants, however, on March 23, 2007 the Company entered into an amendment to
the Loan and Security Agreement which waived the non-compliance with these covenants. The
amendment also lowered the quarterly net income covenant to a cumulative balance of $0 through
September 30, 2007, and adjusted the fixed charge coverage ratio to 1.0 to 1.0 at December 31, 2007 and
1.2 to 1.0 as of the ¢nd of each fiscal quarter thercafter. :

At December 31, 2005, the Company had a $6,000,000 line of credit with a commercial bank. At
December 31, 2005 the Company owed $4,443,327 on the line of credit. Outstanding borrowings against
the line of credit bore interest at 2% above the prime rate (9.25% at December 31, 2005}). The line was
repaid in March 2006.
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NOTE F—DEBT (Continued)
Notes payable

Notes payable consist of the following:

December 31, December 31,
2006 2005

Notes payable, stockholders, unsecured loans. The notes

were repaid in August 2006. Interest was payable
. monthly ranging from 6-10%....................... 3 — § 800,000
Note payable, bank. Interest was payable at the prime

rate plus 2.5% (9.75% at December 31, 2005). The

note was repaid in March, 2006 .................... — 571,428
Note payable, bank, principal payable $41,667 monthly

over thirty-five months commencing March 2006 for

the period ended December 31, 2006. Interest was

payable monthly at the prime rate plus 1.0% (9.25% at

December 31,2006) ... 1,083,333 —
Note payable, bank, principal payable $27,778 monthly

over thirty-five months commencing December 2006.

Interest was payable monthly at the prime rate plus

1.0% (9.25% at December 31, 20060)................ 044 445 —
TOtal e e 2,027,778 1,371,428
Less; current maturities ... ...oovvevvniiinvraaaanann 833,333 1,085,714

$1,194,445 $ 285,714

Aggregate maturities of notes payable are as follows at December 31, 2006:

Years ending December 31:

2007 o o et e e 833,333

.11 J S U 833,333

2000 . o e e e 361,111
Letter of Credit

'In November 2006 the Company issued a letter of credit to a vendor for $243,000 to support a
customer order for products. In December 2006 the Company made a payment to the vendor for $81,543,
and at December 31, 2006 the liability under the letter of credit was $161,458.

NOTE G—CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATION

Equipment acquired under capital lease obligations is classified as property and equipment in the
accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements and consisted of the following:

December 31, December 31,
2006 2005
EQUIPMeEnt ... .ouiet i i e $ 439,031 $439,031
Less: accumulated depreciation ........... ...l (188,945) (66,921)

$ 250,086 $372,110
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The capital lease obligations expire in 2009 and bear interest at 10.3% imputed bascd on the lessor’s
implicit rate of return. Future minimum capital lease payments are as follows:

Ammount

2007 o e e e 133,897
2008 . e e e e 133,897
2000 e 13,404
TOtal, o o $281,198
Less: amount representing interest ... ... i i e 33,847
Net present value of minimum lease payments ......................... 247351
Less: current portion. ... o o e e e 116,973

$130378

NOTE H—LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Company leases its facilities in Pennsylvania and Minnesota under agreements expiring between
2007 and 2011. Total rent expense for all leases were approximately $265,000, $305,000, and $181,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

Future minimum lease payments required under the operating leases in effect subsequent to
December 31, 2006 are approximately as follows:

Amount
2007 o e e e e e $223,100
2008 . e e e e e e 227,100
2000 L e e e 232,200
0 236,800
72U 241,500

NOTE [—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Notes payable—stockholders

As described in Note F, the Company was indebted to certain stockholders for notes payable. Interest
paid to Stockholders approximated $70,800, $52,500 and $24,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005, and 2004, respectively.

Support services

A stockholder of the Company owns another entity which provided the Company with shared
occupancy, accounting, office and administrative services for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004 at costs of $0, $184,000, and $558,000, respectively.

Beginning in 2004, the Company has an agreement with a stockholder’s company whereby the
Company transferred its warranty risks for extended battery warranties sold. Payments under this
agreement approximated $158,000, $152,000 and $73,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively. This same company also provides certain customers with technical support. Technical
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support expenses were approximately $1,242,000, $460,000 and $528,000 for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Beginning in May 2006, the Company has an agreement with a stockholder’s company to provide the
Company with consulting services with respect to software development. Payments under this agreement
approximated $116,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006.

During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, a stockholder performed legal services for
the Company at costs approximating $36,000, $134,000 and $28,000, respectively.
Due from related party

There is approximately $104,000 due from a related party at December 31, 2006 for the sale of certain
hardware products. Such amount is classified as accounts receivable in the accompanying financial
statements.

NOTE J—EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

The Company has a defined contribution plan covering substantially all employees. As allowed under
Section 401(K) of the Internal Revenue Code, the plan provides tax deferred salary deductions for eligible
employees. Company contributions are at the discretion of the board of directors. The Company did not
make a contribution to the plan for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 or 2004.

NOTE K—CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the Company had significant customer accounts receivable as
follows:

2006 2005
COMPANY AL ..ottt e e 0% 23%
Company B. ... .o 0% 17%

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company had sales to significant customers as
follows:

2006 2005 2004
ComPpany A. . ..ottt 13% 11% 12%
Company B. ... ...t 0% 14% 5%

NOTE L—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Litigation

The Company is involved in disputes or legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business.
Management does not believe the outcome of such legal actions will have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Employment Agreements

In July, 2006, the Company entered into employment agreements with three executives of the
Company. The employment contracts expire in December 2008. In addition to the payment of total annual
salaries of $925,000, in the aggregate, the employment agreements allow for the granting of 900,000
options and 1,500,000 warrants to purchase the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $2.00 per
share; which the company granted on November 29, 2006, The agreements also call for the payment of
discretionary bonuses based upon revenue and net income targets that are set by the compensation
committee of the board of directors. See Note N for additional information.

NOTE M—INCOME TAXES

Prior to the Merger discussed in Note B, the Company filed its Federal and state Income Tax Returns
as a Sub-Chapter § Corporation. Therefore, any income tax liability from its operations was payable
directly by its shareholders. As a result of the Merger, the Company’s Sub-Chapter S Corporation status
was terminated on November 30, 2006. In accordance with SFAS 109, when the Company changes its tax
status from a nontaxable Sub-Chapter S Corporation to a taxable C Corporation, deferred tax assets and
Habilities shall be recognized for timing differences at the date that a nontaxable enterprise becomes a
taxable enterprise. As a result, the Company recorded a net deferred tax asset of $151,760 with the offset
being recorded as an income tax benefit in the statement of operations for the year ended December 31,
2006.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company has net operating losses (“NOL”} of approximately $608,000
which will be available to offset future taxable income. Included in the NOL’s are losses of $65,000
generated by New Age Translation, Inc. which are subject to restrictions under Internal Revenue Code
Section 382, due to change in ownership in that entity. Therefore, the Company has recorded a valuation
allowance against the net operating losses generated by New Age Translation, Inc. If not used, the NOL’s
will expire beginning after 2024. The Company’s state NOL’s will also be subject to expiration in varying
years starting in 2013 through 2026.

The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 is as follows:

2006 2005 2004

Current income tax expense (benefit): - = =

Fedeval ... ..o - = =

N 1 < — - -
Deferred income tax expense (benefit): _

Federal ... e e e (1,452,070 — —_

State. .. e (234,894) — —

(1,686964) — —

Income tax expense (benefit) ...................... (1,686,964) — —
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INFOLOGIX, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE M—INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Net operating loss carryforwards
Allowance for doubtful accounts

INVENtOrY [ESEIVE . . ...ttt i s e e e as
Deferred tax assetS-CUITENE ... ..o v e e ottt iaiiiaaareannneeases
Property and equIpment. ... ... oottt
Intangible assets. ... ... oo
Stock based compPensation. . ... ..coveiini it e
Deferred tax assets-long-term. . .......ooiii i i
Total net deferred taxassets . ...t
Valvation allowance . ... o e e

...................................

$ 240,134
47,100
49,919

337,153

125,561

(86,604)
1,336,529
1,375,486
1,712,639

(25,675)
$1,686,964

A reconciliation of the United States statutory income tax rate to the effective income tax rate for the

twelve month period ended December 31, 2006 is as follows:

Tax at the Federal statutoryrate. .. .......ooviiiiiianr-- (1,427,570) 34.0%
1] T 1 72 I (213,504) 5.1%
Permanent differences . ....covvi vt i 196,564 (4.7%)
Income taxable to S Corp.period. ...t (90,694) 2.2%
Impact of change from S to C Corporate tax status. .......... (151,760) 3.6%
Effective taX 1€ . .o vttt r e e aaes (1,686,964) 40.2%

The following un-audited pro-forma tax provision was prepared as if the Company was a taxable entity

for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006.

Year Ended December 31

(Unaudited) 2006 2005 2004
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate

Tax at the Federal statutoryrate............ (1,427,570) 34.0% 231,391 34.0% 293,609 34.0%
Permanent differences ............. ... ... 223445 (5.3%) 37,928 5.6% 29820 3.5%
Federal tax provision...................... (1,204,125) 28.7% 269,319 39.6% 323,429 375%
State & local tax provision (Net of Federal

benefit). ... (194,875) 4.6% 43,681 6.4% 48,571 5.6%
Total tax provision. . .......c.ovvvieeiiean, (1,399,000) 33.3% 313,000 46.0% 372,000 43.1%
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NOTE N—EQUITY

On November 29, 2006, concurrent with the merger discussed in Note B, the Company closed a
private placement of 8,500,000 shares of its common stock to accredited investors. The shares were sold for
an aggregate purchase price of $17,000,000, before costs associated with the private placement of
$2,020,825. The private placement was exempt from registration under the Securities Act of 1933 as
amended (Securities Act), and Regulation D promulgated thereunder.

In connection with the private placement, the Company entered into a registration rights agreement
with investors in the private placement, and certain consultants and advisors to InfoLogix whereby it
agreed, to the extent permissible, to file within 90 days after the closing of the private placement a shelf
registration statement with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) covering the resale of
(i) all shares of common stock issued in connection with the private placement and certain other
transactions, and (ii) the shares of common stock underlying the warrants issued to certain consultants and
advisors. The Company is obligated to maintain the effectiveness of the registration statement from its
effective date through and until the first anniversary of the closing of the private placement, unless all
securities registered under the registration statement have been sold or are otherwise able to be sold
pursuant to Rule 144(k) of the Securities Act. The Company also agreed to use its best efforts to have the
registration statement declared effective by the SEC as soon as possible following filing. However, there
are no specific penalty provisions in connection with the registration rights agreement and therefore the
investors in the private placement are not entitled to receive any extra benefit if the registration does not
oceur.

The registration rights agreement contains a “market standoff” provision pursuant to which, in the
context of an underwritten public offering, investors in the private placement will agree not to offer, sell,
pledge or otherwise transfer or dispose of any of our securities for a period not to exceed the earlier of
(i) 180 days following the date of a final prospectus relating to such pubic offering or (ii) the first
anniversary of the closing date of the private placement.

NOTE O0—STOCK BASED COMPENSATION EXPENSE

In November, 2006, the Company’s board of directors approved the 2006 Equity Compensation Plan
(Plan). In accordance with the plan, the board of directors may grant options to purchase shares of our
common stock to our employees, officers, consultants and non-employee directors. The Plan provides for
the issuance of options to purchase up to 3,860,000 shares of our common stock. On November 29, 2006,
the Company granted 617,000 incentive stock options to purchase common stock to employees at $2.00 per
share. In addition, on November 29, 2006, the Company granted 1,495,000 nonqualified stock options to
purchase the Company’s common stock to executive officers, directors and a consultant of the Company at
$2.00 per share. The incentive stock options and the non-qualified options expire November 29, 2016.

The Plan also provides that employees, consultants and non-employee directors are eligible to receive
nonqualified stock options, while only employees are eligible to receive incentive stock options. The
incentive stock options offer employees certain tax advantages that are not available under nonqualified
stock options. The board of directors, or a committee thereof whose members are appointed by the Board,
administers the Plan, and has discretion in setting the terms of options granted to employees, consultants
and non-employee directors.

Upon the closing of the Merger and the private placement as discussed in Note N, the Company
granted 2,650,000 warrants to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock at $2.00 per share to
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NOTE O—STOCK BASED COMPENSATION EXPENSE (Continued)

certain officers, directors and consuitants to the Company. The warrants vest 100% on the grant date and
are exercisable 25% on the first anniversary and the remainder ratably on a monthly basis over the
following three years, :

Under SFAS 123(R), the Company estimated the fair value of stock options and warrants granted
using the Black-Scholes valuation model and straight-line amortization. This mode! utilizes the estimated
fair value of common stock and requires that, at the date of grant, we use the expected term of the option,
the expected volatility of the price of our common stock, risk free interest rates and expected dividend
yield of our common stock. This fair value is then amortized on a straight-line basis over the requisite
service periods of the awards, which is generally the vesting period. Employee options typically vest with
respect to 25% of the shares one year after the options’ grant date and the remainder ratably on an annual
basis over the following three years. Director options typically vest with respect to 50% of the shares six
months after the options’ grant date and the remainder ratably on a monthly basis over the following three
years. Fully vested warrants were granted to employees and non-employee consultants that become
exercisable ratably on a monthly basis over the following four year. These fully vested warrants were fully
expensed as of December 31, 2006.

The fair value of options and warrants granted were estimated at the date of grant using the following
assumptions;

Year ended
December 31,
2006

Employee and Non-employee Stock Options and Warrants
Expected life inyears ......... .. ... ... .l 6.25
Risk-free interestrate. ... ... . o ittt 4.51%
Volatility . ..o e 66.63%
Dividendyield ....... ... e —
Fairvalue of grants . ....... ...t $ 1.47

The expected term represents the period that stock-based awards are expected to be outstanding,
giving consideration to the contractual terms of the stock-based awards, vesting schedules and expectations
of future employee behavior as influenced by changes to the terms of our stock-based awards. For the year
ended December 31, 2006, we have elected to use the simplified method of determining the expected term
as permitted by SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin 107. The computation of expected volatility for the year
ended December 31, 2006 is based on the historical volatility of comparable companies from a
representative peer group selected based on industry and markel capitalization data. As required by SFAS
123(R), management estimates expected forfeitures and is recognizing compensation costs only for those
equity awards expected to vest.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the recognized compensation cost tor stock options and
warrants granted to employees was $2,253,421. At December 31, 2006, the total compensation cost related
to stock options granted under SFAS 123(R)to employees and directors but not yet recognized was
approximately $2,659,833, net of estimated forfeitures of $323,777. This cost will be amortized on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, which is typically 4 years. For the year ended December 31,
2006, the recognized compensation cost for warrants issued to consultants was $520,013, In addition, the
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NOTE O—STOCK BASED COMPENSATION EXPENSE (Continued)

Company recorded an income tax benefit of $1,336,529 related to the granting of the nonqualified options
and warrants. See Note M for additional information.

NOTE P—SELECTED CONSOLIDATED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

2006 Quarter Ended Dec 31, Sep30, Jun 30, Mar 31,
REVETUES ..ot vie it raceianeans $16,439,964 $15.960,764 $15,331,675 $13,053,974
Gross profit. ...ooovvviiiiiiii e, 3,748,676 4,238,620 3,670,032 3,292,535
Net (loss)income . .......ooovvieienninns (2,529,714) 169,674 398,258 92,295
Basic net (loss) income per share ........... $ (0.15) § 001 § 003 $§ 0.01
Diluted net (loss) income per share ......... $ - (0.15) § 001 $ 003 §$ 0.01
Shares used in computing basic net

income(loss) per share (in thousands) . . ... 16,480 12,500 12,500 12,500
Shares used in computing diluted net

income(loss) per share (in thousands) .. ... 16,480 12,500 12,500 12,500
2005 Quarter Ended Dec 31, Sep 30, Jun 30, Mar 31,
REVENUES .. ..ot eiiiieecaainaanns $16,121,982 $15,875437 $12,878,506 $10,596,131
Grossprofit..........coviiiiiiiinnans 3,417,724 3,368,234 3,309,435 2,771,513
Net (loss)income.........oovvinnvnnns 234,344 364,631 327,240 (245,652)
Basic net (loss) income per share .......... $ 002 $ 0.03 § 0.03 § (0.02)
Diluted net (loss) income per share ........ $ 002 % 003 $ 003 $ (002)
S Shares used in computing basic net

income(loss) per share (in thousands} . ... 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500
Shares used in computing diluted net

income(loss) per share (in thousands) . . .. 12,500 12,500 12,500 12,500
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A, Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed in the Company’s reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time
_periods  specified in the SEC’s rulesand forms and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, as appropriate, to allow for timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and
evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that any controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving
the desired control objectives, and management is required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-
benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

As required by SEC Rule 15d-15(b), the Company carried out an evaluation under the supervision
and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company's
disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2006. Based on the foregoing, the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures werte designed to ensure that the information the Company is required to disclose in its reports
under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed and reported in an accurate manner and on a timely basis
and the information that the Company is required to disclose in its Exchange Act reports is accumulated
and communicated to management to permit timely decisions with respect to required disclosure.

This annual report does not include a report of management’s assessment regarding internal control
over financial reporting or an attestation report of the Company’s registered public accounting firm due to
a transition period established by the rules of the Securities Exchange Commission for newly public
companies.

Item 9B, Other Information

None.
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PART II1

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to, and will be contained in, our
definitive proxy statement, which we anticipate will be filed no later than April 30, 2007, and thus we have
omitted this information in accordance with General Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to, and will be contained in our
definitive proxy statement, which we anticipate will be filed no later than April 30, 2007, and thus we have
omitted this information in accordance with General Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K.

Item 12.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to, and will be contained in, our
definitive proxy statement, which we anticipate will be filed no later than April 30, 2007, and thus we have
omitted this information in accordance with General Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K.

Item 13. Certain Relationships, Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to, and will be contained in, our
definitive proxy statement, which we anticipate will be filed no later than April 30, 2007, and thus we have
omitted this information in accordance with General Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to, and will be contained in, our
definitive proxy statement, which we anticipate will be filed no later than April 30, 2007, and thus we have
omitted this information in accordance with General Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K.

PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Financial Statements and Schedules
The following financial statements and schedules listed below are included in this Form 10-K.

Financial Statements (See Item 8)

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedules
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Schedule II-Valuation and Qualifying Account

INFOLOGIX, INC.
SCHEDULE H-VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNT

Allowance for

Doubtful Reserve for Excess
Receivables and and Obsolete
Sales Returns Lnventory
Balance at December 31,2003, . ... .. ... $ 0 $105,000
Charges tO OPErations . . . ..ottt e e 100,000 0
D eductioNS ... e e s 0 (65,000)
Balance at December 31, 2004, .. .. . e 100,000 40,000
Charges to OpPerations . ...ty ir it e cr e i e 05,482 35,000
D EdUCHIONS ... e e e e (95,482) 0
Balance at December 31, 2005, ... ... oo e e 100,000 75,000
Charges to Operations . .. ... it i e caaieanas 20,000 123,965
DedUCHiONS ...t e 0 0
Balance at December 31,2006, .. ... o i i $120,000 $198,965
(b) Exhibits
Exhibit No, Description
21 Agreement and Plan of Merger between New Age Translation, Inc., INFLX Acquisition

Corp. and InfoLogix, Inc. dated as of November 29, 2006 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 5, 2006).

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of New Age Translation, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 28, 2006).

3.2 Certificate of Amendment of New Age Translation, Inc. changing corporate name to
InfoLogix, Inc (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of our Current Report on
Form 8-K dated December 5, 2006).

33 By-laws of New Age Translation, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of
our Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 28, 2000).

4.1 Warrant dated as of November 29, 2006 between Infol.ogix, Inc. and Warren V. Musser
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 5, 2006).

4.2 Warrant dated as of November 29, 2006 between InfoLogix, Inc. and Michael M, Carter
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 5, 2006).

4.3 Warrant dated as of November 29, 2006 between Infol.ogix, Inc. and Karen Keating Mara
{(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 5, 2006).

4.4 Warrant dated as of November 29, 2006 between InfoLogix, Inc. and Pavid T. Gulian
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 5, 2006).
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4.5

4.6

47

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

Warrant dated as of November 29, 2006 between InfoLogix, Inc. and Richard D. Hodge
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.5 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 5, 2006).

Warrant dated as of November 29, 2006 between Infologix, Inc. and Craig A. Wilensky
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.6 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 5, 2006).

Warrant dated as of November 29, 2006 between Infol.ogix, Inc. and Fairmount Partners
LP (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.7 of our Current Report on Form 8-K
dated December 5, 2006).

Registration Rights Agreement dated as of November 29, 2006 by and among

Infol.ogix, Inc, and the investors set forth on the signature pages thereto (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 5,
2006).

Employment Agreement dated as of July 17, 2006 by and between David T. Gulian and
InfoLogix, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of our Current Report on
Form 8-K dated December 5, 2006).

Employment Agreement dated as of September 18, 2006 by and between John A, Roberts
and InfoLogix, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of our Current
Report on Form 8-K dated December 5, 2006).

Employment Agreement dated as of July 17, 2006 by and between Richard D. Hodge and
InfoLogix, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of our Current Report on
Form 8-K dated December 5, 2006),

Employment Agreement dated as of July 17, 2006 by and between Craig A. Wilensky and
Infol.ogix, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of our Current Report on
Form 8-K dated December 5, 2006).

New Age Translation, Inc. 2006 Equity Compensation Plan (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 28, 2006).

Consulting Agreement effective as of July 17, 2006 by and between Corrugated Service
Corp. d/b/a Amtech and InfoLogix, Inc (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.7
of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 5, 2006).

Services Agreement effective as of July 17, 2006 by and between Futura Services, Inc. and
InfoLogix, Inc (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of our Current Report on
Form 8-K dated December 5, 2006).

Amendment dated October 9, 2006 to Services Agreement dated as of July 17, 2006 by and
between Futura Services, Inc. and InfoLogix, Inc (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.9 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 5, 2006).

Advisory Agreement dated as of July 17, 2006 by and between Warren V. Musser and
InfoLogix, Inc (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of our Current Report on
Form 8-K dated December 5, 2006).

Form of Lock-up Agreement between the former stockholders of InfoLogix, Inc. and
InfoLogix, Inc (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.11 of our Current Report on
Form 8-K dated December 5, 2006).
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10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

21
311

31.2

321

322

Loan and Security Agreement between InfoLogix Inc., OPT Acquistion LLC, Embedded
Technologies, LLC and Sovereign Bank dated March 16, 2006 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.12 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 5, 2006).

First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement between Infologix Inc., OPT
Acquisition LL.C, Embedded Technologies, LLC and Sovereign Bank (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 5,
2006). :

Second Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement between Infol.ogix Inc., OPT
Acquisition LLC, Embedded Technologies, LLC and Sovereign Bank (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.14 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated December 3,
2006).

. Securities Pledge Agreement between New Age Translation, Inc. and Sovereign Bank

{(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of our Current Report on Form 8-K
dated December 5, 2006).

Surety Agreement between New Age Translation, Inc. and Sovereign Bank (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 of our Current Report on Form 8-K dated
December 5, 2006).

Third Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement between InfoLogix Inc., OPT
Acquisition LLC, Embedded Technologies, LLC and Sovereign Bank.* .

Securities Pledge Agreement between InfoLogix Systems Corporation and Sovereign
Bank.*

Direct and Indirect Subsidiaries of the Registrant.*

Certification pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

Certification pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.*

(*) Filed herewith.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned; thereunto duly
authorized, in Hatboro, Pennsylvania on March 29, 2007.

INFOLOGIX, INC.
By: /s/ DAVID T. GULIAN

David T. Gulian
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by
the following persons in the capacities indicated on March 29, 2007.

Signatures Title(s)
/s{ WARREN V. MUSSER Chairman of the Board of Directors

Warren V. Musser

/s/ DAVID T. GULIAN President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
David T. Gulian (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ JOHN A. ROBERTS Chief Financial Officer
John A. Roberts (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/ WAYNE D. HocH Director

Wayne D. Hoch

#s/ RICHARD D. HODGE Director
Richard D. Hodge

/sf THOMAS C. LYNCH Director
Thomas C. Lynch

/s/ THOMAS Q. MILLER Director
Thomas O. Miller

/s/ JAKE STEINFELD Director
Jake Steinfeld
/s/ CRAIG A. WILENSKY Director

Craig A. Wilensky

/s/ RICHARD A. VERMEIL Director
Richard A. Vermeil
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Exhibit Number

10.17

10.18

21
311

31.2

321

322

Description
Third Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement between InfoLogix Inc., OPT

Acquisition LLC, Embedded Technologies, 1.L.C and Sovereign Bank.

Securities Pledge Agreement between InfoLogix Systems Corporation and Sovereign
Bank.

Direct and Indirect Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

Certification pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification pursuant to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C, Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Exhibit 10.17

THIRD AMENDMENT AND MODIFICATION
TO LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT

THIS THIRD AMENDMENT AND MODIFICATION TO LOAN AND SECURITY AGREEMENT
(the “Amendment”) is made effective as of the 23 day of March, 2007, by and among INFOLOGIX
SYSTEMS CORPORATION (formerly known as Info Logix Inc.), a Delaware corporation (“Infologix™),
OPT ACQUISITION LLC, a Pecnnsylvania limited liability company (“Optasia”), EMBEDDED
TECHNOLOGIES, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Embedded” and together with Infologix
and Optasia, jointly, severally and collectively “Borrowers” and each a “Borrower”) and SOVEREIGN
BANK (the “Bank™).

BACKGROUND

A. Pursuant to that certain Loan and Security Agreement dated March 16, 2006 by and among
Botrowers and Bank (as amended by that certain First Amendment and Modification to Loan and Security
Agreement dated August 25, 2006, that Second Amendment and Modification to Loan and Security
Agreement dated October 31, 2006 and as the same may hereafter be amended, modified, supplemented
or restated from time to time, being referred to herein as the “Loan Agreement”), Bank agreed, inter alia,
to extend to Borrowers the following credit facilities: (i) a line of credit in the maximum principal amount
of Eight Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($8,500,000.00), (ii) a term loan in the original principal
amount of One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,500,000.00) and (iii) a term loan in the
original principa! amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00).

B. Borrowers have requested and Bank has agreed to amend the Loan Agreement in accordance
with the terms and conditions contained herein.

C. All capitalized terms contained herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings
set forth in the Loan Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1. Waiver of Covenant Defaults.

(a) Bank hereby waives any Default or Event of Default that exists or may arise under the Loan
Agreement solely as a result of the following events (collectively, the “Specified Defaults™):

(i) failure by Borrowers to maintain the Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio set forth in
Section 8.3 of the Loan Agreement as of Borrowers’ fiscal quarter ended December 31, 2006; and

(i) failure by Borrowers to maintain the Minimum Annual Net Income set forth in
Section 8.1 of the Loan Agreement as of Borrowers’ fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

(b) The waivers set forth in Section I(a) above are given solely in connection with the Specified
Defaults and solely for the periods described therein and shall not be deemed to be an agreement,
obligation or commitment by Bank to waive Borrower’s compliance with any of the other terms or
conditions in any of the Loan Documents or any other Events of Decfault, whether now existing or
hereafter arising, including, without limitation, Borrowers’ failure to comply with the covenants set
forth in Sections 8.1 and 8.3 of the Loan Agreement as of any other date after the date hereof.




2. Financial Covenants.

(a)  Sections 8.2 of the Loan Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced with the following:

“8.2  Minimum Quarterly Net Income. Borrowers shall have Net Income of at least $0 as of
June 30, 2007 and as of the end of the first three (3) fiscal quarters thereafter of Borrowers
measured on a year-to-date basis.”

(b)  Sections 8.3 of the Loan Agreement is hereby deleted and replaced with the following:

“8.3  Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio. Borrowers shall maintain a Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio of
not less than (i) 1.0 to 1.0 as of Borrowers’ fiscal quarter ending December 31, 2007 and (ii) 1.2 to
1.0 as of the end of each fiscal quarter of Borrowers ending thereafter.”

3. Quarterly Net Income. For the purposes of calculating Borrowers’ Minimum Quarterly Net
Income set forth in Section 8.2 of the Loan Agreement, for Borrowers’ fiscal quarters ending June 30, 2007
and September 30, 2007 only, the definition of Net Income shall not include (i) non-cash adjustments
required pursuant to FAS 123R expenses related to options and warrants and other non-cash expenses and
(it) acquisition related transactional expenses,

4. Annual Net Income. For the purposes of calculating Borrowers’ Minimum Annual Net Income,
set forth in Section 8.1 of the Loan Agreement, for Borrowers’ fiscal year ending December 31, 2007 only,
the definition of Net Income shall not include non-cash adjustments required pursuant to FAS 123R
expenses related to options and warrants and other non-cash expenses.

5.  Pledged Account. Contemporaneously with the execution of this Amendment, Borrowers shall
grant Bank, as additional security for the Bank Indebtedness, a security interest in certain investment
property owned by Borrowers and maintained with Bank in Account No.INF05268 (the “Pledged
Account”). If, at any time and from time to time, the value of the Pledged Account, as determined by Bank
in its reasonable discretion, is less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) (the amount by which the
value of the Pledged Account is less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) being referred to herein as a
“Deficiency”), and the Borrowers do not deposit sufficient investment property to reduce the Deficiency to
$0 within three (3) Business Days of written notice from the Bank that such Deficiency exists, the Bank
shall have the right to institute a reserve (a “Deficiency Reserve™) against the Borrowing Base Amount in
an amount equal to the Deficiency. Upon receipt of evidence, in form and content reasonably satisfactory
to Bank, that Borrowers have complied with the financial covenants set forth in Section 8 of the Loan
Agreement for Borrowers’ fiscal year ending December 31, 2007, and provided that no Event of Default
shall have occurred and be continuing, Bank shall, at the request of Borrowers, release its lien on the
Pledged Account and shall no longer have the right to institute a Deficiency Reserve (provided that Bank
shall continue to have the right to institute such other reserves from time to time as provided for in the
Loan Agreement).

6. Pledge Agreement. This Amendment shall not be deemed effective until receipt by Bank of (a}a
Securities Account Pledge Agreement (the “Pledge Agreement”), in form and content satisfactory to Bank,
granting Bank a security interest in the Pledged Account and (b) all other additional instruments,
documents or information as the Bank may reasonably deem necessary or advisable to perfect, protect and
maintain the security interests in the Pledged Account.

7. Amendment/References. The Loan Agreement and the Loan Documents are hereby amended to be
consistent with the terms of this Amendment. All references in the Loan Agreement and the Loan
Documents to (a) the “Loan Agreement” shall mean the Loan Agreement as amended hereby; and (b) the
“Loan Documents” shall include this Amendment, the Pledge Agreement and all other instruments or
agreements executed pursuant to or in connection with the terms hereof.




8. Release. Each Borrower and Guarantor acknowledges and agrecs that it has no claims, suits or
causes of action against Bank and hereby remises, releases and forever discharges Bank, their officers,
directors, shareholders, employees, agents, successors and assigns, and any of them, from any claims, suits
or causes of action whatsoever, in law or at equity, which any Borrower or Guarantor has or may have
arising from any act, omission or otherwise, at any time up to and including the date of this Amendment.

9.  Additional Documents; Further Assurances. Each Borrower covenants and agrees to execute and
deliver to Bank, or to cause to be executed and delivered to Bank contemporaneously herewith, at the sole
cost and expense of such Borrower, the Amendment and any and ail documents, agreements, statements,
resolutions, searches, insurance policies, consents, certificates, legal opinions and information as Bank may
require in connection with the execution and delivery of this Amendment or any documents in connection
herewith, or to further evidence, effect, enforce or protect any of the terms hercof or the rights or
remedies granted or intended to be granted to Bank herein or in any of the Loan Documents, or to enforce
or to protect Bank’s interest in the Collateral. All such documents, agreements, statements, ete., shall be in
form and content acceptable to Bank in its sole discretion. Each Borrower hereby authorizes Bank to file,
at such Borrower’s cost and expense, financing statements, amendments thereto and other items as Bank
may require to evidence or perfect Bank’s continuing security interest and liens in and against the
Collateral. Each Borrower agrees to join with Bank in notifying any third party with possession of any
Collateral of Bank’s security interest therein and in obtaining an acknowledgment from the third party that
it is holding the Collateral for the benefit of Bank. Each Borrower will cooperate with Bank in obtaining
control with respect to Collateral consisting of deposit accounts, investment property, letter-of-credit rights
and electronic chattel paper.

10. Further Agreements and Representations. Each Borrower does hereby:

(a) ratify, confirm and acknowledge that the statements contained in the foregoing Background
and in Section 1 hereof are true and complete and that, as amended hereby, the Loan Agreement and
the other Loan Documents are in full force and effect and are valid, binding and enforceable against
each Borrower and its assets and properties, all in accordance with the terms thereof, as amended;

(b) covenant and agree to perform all of such Borrower’s obligations under the Loan Agreement
and the other Loan Documents, as amended;

{c) acknowledge and agree that as of the date hereof, no Borrower has any defense, set-off,
counterclaim or challenge against the payment of any Bank Indebtedness or the enforcement of any of
the terms of the Loan Agreement or of the other Loan Documents, as amended,;

(d) acknowledge and agree that all representations and warranties of each Borrower contained
in the Loan Agreement and/or the other Loan Documents, as amended, are true, accurate and correct
in all material respects on and as of the date hereof as if made on and as of the date hereof;

(e) represent and warrant that no Default or Event of Default exists, except as provided for in
Section 1{a) herein;

(f) covenant and agree that such Borrower’s failure to comply with any of the terms of this
Amendment or any other instrument or agreement executed or delivered in connection herewith,
shall constitute an Event of Default under the Loan Agreement and each of the other Loan
Documents subject to any applicable notice and cure periods provided for therein; and

{(g) acknowledge and agree that nothing contained herein, and no actions taken pursuant to the
terms hereof, are intended to constitute a novation of any of the Notes, the Loan Agreement or of any
of the other Loan Documents and, except as specifically set forth in Section I hereof, Section I of the
First Amendment and Modification to Loan and Security Agreement among Borrowers and the Bank
and Section I of the Second Amendment and Modification to Loan and Security Agreement among




Borrowers and Bank, does not constitute a release, termination or waiver of any existing Event of
Default or of any of the liens, security interests, rights or remedies granted to the Bank in any of the
Loan Documents, which liens, security interests, rights and remedies are hereby expressly ratified,
confirmed, extended and continued as security for all Bank Indebtedness.

Each Borrower acknowledges and agrees that Bank is relying on the foregoing agreements,
confirmations, representations and warranties of each Borrower and the other agreements, representations
and warranties of each Borrower contained herein in agreeing to the amendments contained in this
Amendment.

Ul. Fees, Cost, Expenses and Expenditures. Borrowers will pay all of Bank’s reasonable expenses in
connection with the review, preparation, negotiation, documentation and closing of this Amendment and
the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereunder, including without limitation, fees,
disbursements, expenses and disbursements of counsel retained by Bank and all fees related to filings,
recording of documents, searches, environmental assessments and appraisal reports, whether or not the
transactions contemplated hereunder are consummated.

12. No Waiver. Nothing contained herein constitutes an agreement or obligation by Bank to grant any
further amendments to the Loan Agreement or any of the other Loan Documents. Except as specifically
set forth in Section 1 hereof, Section 1 of the First Amendment and Modification to Loan and Security
Agreement among Borrowers and the Bank and Section I of the Second Amendment and Modification to
Loan and Security Agreement among Borrowers and Bank, nothing contained herein constitutes a waiver
or release by Bank of any Event of Default or of any rights or remedies available to Bank under the Loan
Documents or at law or in equity.

13. Inconsistencies. To the extent of any inconsistencies between the terms and conditions of this
Amendment and the terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement or the other Loan Documents, the
terms and conditions of this Amendment shall prevail. All terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement
and other Loan Documents not inconsistent herewith shali remain in full force and effect and are hereby
ratified and confirmed by Borrowers.

14. Binding Effect. This Amendment, upon due execution hereof, shall be binding upon and inure to
the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.

15. Governing Law. This Amendment shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania without regard to conflict of law principles.

16. Severability. The provisions of this Amendment and all other Loan Documents are deemed to be
severable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of any provision shall not affect or impair the remaining
provisions which shall continue in full force and effect.

17. Modifications. No modification of this Amendment or any of the Loan Documents shall be
binding or enforceable unless in writing and signed by or on behalf of the party against whom enforcement
is sought.

18. Headings. The headings of the Articles, Sections, paragraphs and clauses of this Amendment are
inserted for convenience only and shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Amendment.

19. Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall
constitute an original and all of which together shall constitute the same agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, intending to be tegally bound hereby, have caused this
Amendment to be executed the day and year first above written.

INFOLOGIX SYSTEMS CORPORATION
(formerly known as Info Logix Inc.)

By:  /s/ David T. Gulian
David Gulian, President

OPT ACQUISITION LLC

By:  /s/ David T. Gulian
David Gulian, President

EMBEDDED TECHNOLOGIES, LLC
By: INFO LOGIX INC,, its sole Member

By: /s/ David T. Gulian
David Gulian, President

SOVEREIGN BANK

By:  /s/Steven Fahringer
Steven Fahringer, Vice President

The undersigned, intending to be legally bound hereby, consents and agrees to the foregoing Third
Amendment and Modification to Loan and Security Agreement dated of even date herewith (the
“Agreement”), and all terms thereof and further agrees that (a) such Agreement shall in no way affect or
impair the undersigned’s obligations under that certain Surety Agreement from the undersigned to Bank
dated November 29, 2006 (the “Surety”), or under any other documents executed or delivered pursuant
thereto or in connection therewith and (b) the terms of the Surety are hereby ratified and confirmed, all as
of the date hereof,

NEW AGE TRANSLATION, INC.

By:  /s/ David T. Gulian
Name/Title: David T. Gulian, President
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Exhibit 10.18
SECURITIES ACCOUNT PLEDGE AGREEMENT

THIS SECURITIES ACCOUNT PLEDGE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is dated March 23, 2007
by INFOLOGIX SYSTEMS CORPORATION (formerly known as InfoLogix Inc.), a Delaware corporation
(the “Pledgor™) for benefit of SOVEREIGN BANK (the “Bank”). Pledgor, intending to be legally bound
hereby, agrees as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS. For purposes of this Agreement,

1.1 “Bank Indebtedness” shall mean all obligations and indebtedness of Borrower and/or Pledgor
to Bank, whether now or hereafter owing or existing, including, without limitation, all obligations
under the Loan Documents, all obligations of Pledgor to reimburse Bank for payments made by Bank
at any time or from time to time for the preservation and/or protection of the Collateral, all other
obligations or undertakings now or hereafter made by or for the benefit of Borrower and/or Pledgor
to or for the benefit of Bank under any other agreement, promissory note or undertaking now existing
or hereafter entered into by Borrower andfor Pledgor with Bank, including, without limitation, all
obligations of Borrower and/or Pledgor to Bank under any guaranty or surety agreement, and all
obligations of Borrower and/or Pledgor to immediately pay to Bank the amount of any overdraft on
any deposit account maintained with Bank, together with all interest and other sums payable in
connection with any of the foregoing.

1.2 “Borrower” shall mean jointly, severally and collectively, Opt Acquisition, LLC a
Pennsylvania limited liability company, Embedded Technologies, LLC a Delaware limited liability
company and Pledgor.

1.3 “Code” shall mean the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted by the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania, as the same may be amended from time to time.

1.4 “Collateral” shall mean (a) the Securities Account, and .(b) all dividends, cash, securities,
investment property, financial assets and other property from time to time on deposit in, or issued,
paid, declared and/or distributed in connection with, the Securities Account, or any portion thereof,
and (c) all cash, securities, investment property, financial assets and other property paid, issued and/or
distributed to or for the benefit of Pledgor in exchange, redemption or substitution for the Securities
Account or any property therein, or any portion thereof, and (d) all other cash, securities, investment
property, financial assets, rights to issue entitiement orders, and other property paid, issued and/or
distributed to or for the benefit of Pledgor in connection with, or otherwise existing as a consequence
of, Pledgor’s ownership of the Securities Account, or any portion thereof, and (e) all proceeds of the

| foregoing.

|
|
|
|

1.5 “Event of Default” shall mean any and all events described in Section 8 below.

1.6 “Loan Agreement” shall mean that certain Loan and Security Agreement dated March 16,
2006 by and among Borrower and Bank (as amended by that certain First Amendment and
Modification to Loan and Security Agreement dated August 25, 2006, that Second Amendment and
Modification to Loan and Security Agreement dated October 31, 2006, that Third Amendment and
Modification to Loan and Security Agreement dated of even date herewith and as the same may
hereafter be amended, modified, supplemented or restated from time to time).

1.7 “Loan Dacuments” shall mean all agreements, documents and/or instruments evidencing the
Bank Indebtedness and all agreements, documents and instruments collateral thereto, together with
all amendments, replacements, increases, renewals and modifications of any of the foregoing,
including without limitation this Agreement, the Loan Agreement, as any of the foregoing may be
amended, restated or replaced from time to time.




1.8 “Securities Account” shall mean that certain account of Pledgor maintained with Sovereign
Bank Capital Markets, a division of Bank, having Account No.INF05268, together with al
substitutions or replacements therefor, all property from time to time therein, and alt proceeds
thereof.

All capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meanings given such term in the Loan
Agreement. Terms used herein which are defined in the Code shall have the meanings given such terms in
the Code.

2. SECURITY INTEREST. Pledgor hereby pledges and grants to Bank a security interest in and a
lien on the Collateral.

3. EFFECT OF GRANT. The pledge of Collateral granted to Bank by Pledgor hereunder shall not
be rendered void by the fact that no Bank Indebtedness exists as of a particular date, but shall continue in
full force and effect until all Bank Indebtedness have been paid in full and Bank has no agreement or
commitment outstanding pursuant to which Bank may extend credit to or on behall of Borrower or
Pledgor and Bank has executed and delivered termination statements and/or releases.

4. OBLIGATIONS SECURED. The Collateral and the continuing security interest granted therein
shall secure all Bank Indebtedness. IT IS THE EXPRESS INTENTION OF PLEDGOR THAT THE
COLLATERAL SHALL SECURE ALL BORROWER’S AND PLEDGOR’S EXISTING AND
FUTURE OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE LOAN DOCUMENTS OR OTHERWISE.

5. DELIVERY. All original certificates and instruments representing or evidencing the Collateral,
or any portion thereof, shall be delivered to and held by or on behalf of Bank pursuant hereto and shall be
in suitable form for transfer by delivery, or shail be accompanied by duly executed instruments of transfer
or assignments in blank, all in form and substance satisfactory to Bank and with guaranteed signature(s). If
a broker or agent is holding the certificates and/or instruments evidencing the Collateral or all or any part
of the Collateral is held in a securities account, Pledgor shall either (a) cause such broker and/or agent to
execute and deliver to Bank a control agreement acknowledging this Agreement and perfecting Bank’s
security interest in the Collateral, which agreement shall be in form and content acceptable to Bank in its
sole discretion, or (b) authorize such broker or agent to transfer Pledgor s account in which such Collateral
is held to Bank’s name, as nominee.

6. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES. Pledgor hereby represents and warrants as follows,
which representations and warranties shall be true and correct as of the date hereof, at the time of the
creation of any Bank Indebtedness and until the Bank Indebtedness has been paid in full;

6.1 Valid Organization; Good Standing and Qualification. Pledgor is a corporation duly
incorporated, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware, has full
power and authority to execute, deliver and comply with the Loan Documents, and to carry on its
business as it is now being conducted and is duly licensed or qualified as a foreign corporation in good
standing under the laws of each other jurisdiction in which the character or location of the properties
owned by it or the business transacted by it requires such licensing or qualification.

6.2 Title to Collateral. The Collateral is and will be owned by Pledgor free and clear of all tiens
and other encumbrances of any kind (including liens or other encumbrances upon properties acquired
or to be acquired under conditional sales agreements or other title retention devices), excepting only
liens in favor of the Bank. Pledgor will defend the Collateral against any claims of all persons or
entities other than the Bank.

6.3 Due Authorization and Issuance; Restrictions. The Collateral consisting of securities have been
duly authorized and issued to or for the benefit of Pledgor by the respective issuer and are
outstanding, fully paid and non-assessable.




full,

6.4 Due Authorization; No Legal Restrictions. The execution and delivery by Pledgor of this
Agreement, the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby and the fulfillment and
compliance with the respective terms, conditions and provisions of this Agreement: (a) will not
conflict with or result in a breach of, or constitute a default (or might, upon the passage of time or the
giving of notice or both, constitute a default) under any of Pledgor’s formation or gOVErning
documents or under any of the terms, conditions or provisions of any applicable statute, law, rule,
regulation or ordinance or any indenture, mortgage, loan or credit agreement or instrument to which
Pledgor is a party or by which Pledgor may be bound or affected, or any judgment or order of any
court or governmental department, commission, board, bureau, agency or instrumentality, domestic or
foreign, and (b) will not result in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrance of any
nature whatsoever upon any of the property or assets of Pledgor, including the Collateral, under the
terms or provisions of any such agreement or instrument, except licns in favor of Bank. Neither the
Pledgor nor the Collateral is subject to the terms of any member, manager, shareholder, voting, buy-
sell or other agreement affecting the Collateral, including, without limitation, the sale, transfer or
voting thereof.

6.5 Governmental Consents. No consent, approval or authorization of or designation, declaration
or filing with any governmental authority by Pledgor is required in connection with the execution,
delivery or performance by Pledgor of this Agreement or the consummation of the transactions
contemplated hereby.

6.6 Pending Litigation or Proceedings. There are no judgments outstanding or actions, suits or
proceedings pending or, to the best of Pledgor’s knowledge, threatened against or affecting Pledgor or
the Collateral, or any portion thereof, at law or in equity or before or by any federal, state, municipal
or other governmental department, commission, board, bureau, agency or instrumentality, domestic
or foreign,

6.7 Taxes. Pledgor has filed all tax returns which Pledgor is required to file and has paid, or
made provision for the payment of, all taxes which have or may have become due pursuant to such
returns or pursuant to any assessment reccived by Pledgor except such taxes, if any, as are being
contested in good faith and as to which adequate reserves have been provided. Such tax returns are
complete and accurate in all respects. Pledgor does not know of any proposed additional assessment
or basis for any assessment of additional taxes.

6.8 Accuracy of Representations and Warranties. No representation or warranty by Pledgor
contained herein or in any certificate or other document furnished by Pledgor pursuant hereto or in
connection herewith fails to contain any statement of material fact necessary to make such
representation or warranty not misleading in light of the circumstances under which it was made.
There is no fact which Pledgor knows or should know and has not disclosed to Bank, which does or
may materially and adversely affect Pledgor, or the Collateral, or any portion thereof.

7. COVENANTS. Pledgor covenants and agrees that until the Bank Indebtedness has been paid in
Pledgor shall:

7.1 Payment of Bank Indebtedness. Pay, or cause to be paid, when due all amounts payable by
Pledgor to Bank.

7.2 Adherence to Documents. Not take any action prohibited by the Loan Agreement or the other
Loan Documents.

7.3 Creation of Liens. Not create, incur or permit to exist any mortgage, pledge, encumbrance,
lien, security interest or change of any kind on the Collateral, or any portion thereof, except as
contemplated hereby,




1.4 Taxes; Claims for Labor and Materials. Pledgor will pay or cause to be paid when due all
taxes, assessments, governmental charges or levies imposed upon Pledgor or Pledgor’s income, profits,
or any property belonging to Pledgor, including without limitation all withholding taxes, and all claims
for labor, materials and supplies which, if unpaid, might become a lien or charge upon any of its
properties or assets.

7.5 Additional Documents and Future Actions. Pledgor will, at its sole cost, take such actions and
provide Bank from time to time with such agreements, financing statements and additional
instruments, documents or information as the Bank may reasonably deem necessary or advisable to
perfect, protect and maintain the security interests in the Collateral, or any portion thereof, to permit
Bank to protect its interest in the Collateral, or any portion thereof, or to carry out the terms of the
Loan Documents. Pledgor hereby authorizes and appoints Bank as its attorney-in-fact, with full power
of substitution, to take such actions as Bank may deem advisable to protect the Collateral and its
interests thereon and its rights hereunder, to execute on Pledgor’s behalf and file at Pledgor’s expense
financing statements, and amendments thereto, in those public offices deemed necessary or
appropriate by Bank to establish, maintain and protect a continuously perfected security interest in
the Collateral, including, without limitation, to receive, endorse and collect all certificates,
instruments and securities made payable to or issued to Pledgor representing any dividend, interest, or
other distribution in respect of the Collateral, or any portion thereof, and to execute on Pledgor’s
behalf such other documents and notices as Bank may deem advisable to protect the Collateral and
Bank’s interests therein and Bank’s rights hereunder. Such power being coupled with an interest is
irrevocable. Pledgor irrevocably authorizes the filing of a carbon, photographic or other copy of this
Agreement, or of a financing statement, as a financing statement and agrees that such filing is
sufficient as a financing statement.

7.6 Requested Information. With reasonable promptness, deliver to Bank all such other data and
information in respect of the financial condition and affairs of Pledgor and the value of the Collateral,
as Bank may reasonably request from time to time.

& EVENTS OF DEFAULT. The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall
constitute an Event of Default hereunder:

8.1 The occurrence of any event of default or default under any of the Loan Agreement or any
of the other Loan Documents beyond any grace, notice or cure periods therein.

8.2 The failure of Pledgor or Borrower to pay any amount of principal or interest on the Bank
Indebtedness on the date on which such payment is due (or within any applicable grace period),
whether on demand, at the stated maturity, or due date thereof, or by reason of any requirement for
prepayment thereof, by acceleration or otherwise.

8.3 The failure of Pledgor to duly perform or observe any obligation, covenant or agreement on
its part contained herein.

8.4 Any representation or warranty of Pledgor herein is discovered to be untrue in any material
respect or any statement, certificate or data furnished by Pledgor pursuant hereto is discovered to be
untrue in any material respect as of the date as of which the facts therein set forth are stated or
certified.

9. RIGHTS OF PLEDGOR AND BANK.
9.1 Before Event of Default. Prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default:

(a) Voting. Pledgor shall be entitled to exercise any and all voting and other consensual
rights arising under the Collateral, or any portion thereof, for any purpose not inconsistent with
the terms of any of the Loan Documents.




(b) Dividends; Distributions. Unless Bank otherwise requests in writing, Pledgor shall be
entitled to receive and retain any and all dividends, distributions and interest, declared,
distributed or paid, with respect to the Cotlateral, or any portion thereof, provided, however, that
any and all (i) dividends, distributions and interest paid or payable other than in cash;
(ii) instruments and other property received, receivable or otherwise distributed with respect to,
or in exchange for, the Collateral, or any portion thereof; (iii} dividends and other distributions
paid or payable in cash with respect to the Collateral, or any portion thereof, in connection with
(1) a partial or total liquidation or dissolution, or (2) a reduction of capital, capital surplus or
paid-in-surplus; and (iv) cash paid, payable or otherwise distributed in respect of principal, or
redemption of, or in exchange for, the Collateral, or any portion thereof; shail be forthwith
delivered to Bank to hold as Collateral and shall, if received by Pledgor, be (x) received in trust
for the benefit of Bank, (y)segregated from all other property or funds of Pledgor, and
(z) forthwith delivered to Bank as Collateral in the same form as so received (with any necessary
documents, endorsements or assignments in blank with guaranteed signature(s)).

9.2 After Event of Default. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default and at all times
thercafter:

(a) Voting; Sale of Collateral by Pledgor. All rights of Pledgor to (i) exercise voting, sell all or
any portion of the Collateral and other consensual rights which Pledgor would otherwise be
entitied to exercise, pursuant to Section 9.1(a) and, and (ii) receive dividends and interest
payments which Pledgor would otherwise be authorized to receive and retain, pursuant to
Section 9.1(b), shall cease, and all such rights shall thereupon become absolutely vested in Bank.
Bank shall thereafter have the sole and absolute right to exercise all voting and other consensual
rights, and to receive and hold as Collateral all such dividends and interest payments, without any
further notice to, or consent of, Pledgor.

(b) Dividends Held In Trust. All dividends and interest payments which are received by
Pledgor contrary to the provisions of Section 9.2(a)(ii) shall be (i) received in trust for the benefit
of Bank, (ii) shall be segregated from other property or funds of Pledgor and (iii) forthwith
delivered to the Bank as Collateral in the same form as received (with any necessary documents,
endorsements or assignments in blank with guaranteed signatures).

(c) Sale of Collateral. Bank may exercise in respect of the Collateral and in addition to other
rights and remedies provided for herein or otherwise available to it, all the rights and remedies of
a secured party upon default under the Code. Bank may also, without notice, except as specified
below, sell the Collateral, or any part thereof, in one or more blocks at public or private sale, at
any exchange or otherwise or for future delivery, and at such price or prices and upon such other
terms as Bank may deem commercially reasonable. Pledgor agrees that, to the extent notice of
sale shall be required by law, five (5) days notice to Pledgor of the time and place of any public
sale or private sale is to be made shall constitute reasonable notification. Bank shail not be
obligated to make any sale of Collateral regardless of notice of sale having been given. Bank may
adjourn any public or private sale from time to time by announcement at the time and place fixed
therefor, and such sale may, without further notice, be made at the time and place to which it was
so adjourned.

(d) Application of Proceeds. Any cash held by Bank as Collateral and all cash proceeds
received by Bank in respect of any sale of, collection from, or other realization upon the
Collateral, or any portion thereof, may, in the discretion of Bank, be held by Bank as Collateral
for, and/or then or at any time thereafter applied (after payment of any amounts payable to Bank
pursuant to Section 13) in whole or in part by Bank against all or any part of the Bank
Indebtedness, in such order as Bank shall etect. Any surplus of such cash or cash proceeds held by




Bank and remaining after payment in full of all Bank Indebtedness shall be paid to Pledgor or to
whomsoever may be lawfully entitled to receive such surplus.

9.3 Bank’s Rights. At any time and from time to time, Bank shall have the right, in its discretion
and without notice to Pledgor, to transfer to or to register in the name of Bank, or any of Bank’s
nominees, the Collateral, or any portion thereof, provided, however, that Pledgor shall continue to be
the beneficial owner of any Collateral transferred to or registered in the name of Bank, or Bank’s
nominees, prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default. In addition, Bank shall have the right at any
time to exchange certificates or instruments representing or evidencing the Collateral, or any portion
thereof, for certificates or instruments of smaller or larger denominations,

10. REASONABLE CARE. Bank shall be deemed to have exercised reasonable care in the custody
and preservation of the Collateral in its possession if the Collateral is accorded treatment substantially
equal to that which Bank accords its own property.

11. DELAY OR OMISSION NOT WAIVER. Neither the failure nor any delay on the part of Bank to
exercise any right, remedy, power or privilege under this Agreement upon the occurrence of any Event of
Default or otherwise shall operate as a waiver thereof or impair any such right, remedy, power or privilege.
No waiver of any Event of Default shall affect any later Event of Default or shall impair any rights of Bank.
No single, partial or full exercise of any rights, remedies, powers and privileges by the Bank shall preclude
further or other exercise thereof. No course of dealing between Bank and Pledgor shall operate as or be
deemed to constitute a waiver of Bank’s rights under this Agreement or affect the duties or obligations of
Pledgor.

12. REMEDIES CUMULATIVE; CONSENTS. The rights, remedies, powers and privileges provided
for herein shall not be deemed exclusive, but shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to all other rights,
remedies, powers and privileges in Bank’s favor at law or in equity. Whenever the Bank’s consent or
approval is required or permitted, such consent or approval shall be at the sole and absolute discretion of
Bank.

13. CERTAIN FEES, COSTS, EXPENSES AND EXPENDITURES. Pledgor agrees to pay on
demand all costs and expenses of Bank, including without limitation:

13.1 all costs and expenses in connection with the preparation, review, negotiation, execution,
delivery and administration of this Agreement, and the other documents to be delivered in connection
therewith, or any amendments, extensions and increases to any of the foregoing (including, without
limitation, attorney’s fees and expenses, and the cost of appraisals and reappraisals of Coliateral), and
the cost of periodic lien searches and tax clearance certificates, as Bank deems advisable;

13.2 all losses, costs and expenses in connection with the enforcement, protection and
preservation of the Bank’s rights or remedies under this Agreement, or any other agreement relating
to any Bank Indebtedness, or in connection with legal advice relating to the rights or responsibilities
of Bank (including without limitation court costs, attorney’s fees and expenses of accountants and
appraisers); and

13.3 any and all stamp and other taxes payable or determined to be payable in connection with
the execution and delivery of this Agreement, and all liabilities to which Bank may become subject as
the result of delay in paying or omission to pay such taxes.

In the event Pledgor shall fail to pay taxes, assessments, costs or expenses which it is required to pay
hereunder, or fails to keep the Collateral free from security interests or lien {except as expressly permitted
herein), or otherwise breaches any obligations under this Agreement, Bank in its discretion, may make
expenditures for such purposes and the amount so expended (including attorney’s fees and expenses, filing




fees and other charges) shall be payable by Pledgor on demand and shall constitute part of the Bank
Indebtedness.

In the event any action at law or in equity in connection with the Loan Documents, the Bank
Indebtedness or matters collateral thereto is terminated adverse to Pledgor, Pledgor will pay all attorneys’
fees and legal costs incurred by Bank in connection with such actions.

With respect to any amount required to be paid by Piledgor under this Section, in the event Pledgor
fails to pay such amount on demand, Pledgor shall also pay to Bank interest thereon at the Default Rate
set forth in the Loan Agreement. Pledgor’s obligations under this Section shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

14. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE. Time is of the essence in Pledgor’s performance of Pledgor’s
obligations under the Loan Documents.

15. MISCELLANEOUS.

15.1 Communications and Notices. All notices, requests and other communications made or given
in connection with this Agreement shall be given in accordance with the notice provisions set forth in
the Loan Agreement, '

16. LIMITATION ON LIABILITY. Pledgor shall be responsible for and Bank is hereby released
from any claim or liability in connection with:

(a) Safekeeping any Collateral;

(b) Any loss or damage to any Collateral;

(c) Any diminution in value of the Collateral; or
(d) Any act or default of another person or entity.

Bank shall only be liable for any act or omission on its part constituting willful misconduct. In the
event that Bank breaches its required standard of conduct, Pledgor agrees that Bank’s liability shall be only
for direct damages suffered and shall not extend to consequential or incidental damages. 1f Pledgor brings
suit against Bank in connection with the transactions contemplated hereunder and Bank is found not to be
liable, Pledgor will indemnify and hold Bank harmless from all costs and expenses, including attorney’s
fees, incurred by Bank in connection with such suit. :

17. WAIVERS. In connection with any proceedings hereunder or in connection with any of the
Bank Indebtedness, including without limitation any action by Bank in replevin, foreclosure or other
court process or in connection with any other action related to the Bank Indebtedness or the transactions
contemplated hereunder, Pledgor waives:

(a) all errors, defects and imperfections in such proceedings;

(b) all benefits under any present or future laws exempting any property, real or personal,
or any part of any proceeds thereof from attachment, levy or sale under execution, or providing
for any stay of execution to be issued on any judgment recovered in connection with the Bank
Indebtedness or in any replevin or foreclosure proceeding, or otherwise providing for any
valuation, appraisal or exemption;

(c) presentment for payment, demand, notice of demand, notice of non-payment, protest
and netice of protest of any of the Bank Indebtedness;

(d) any requirement for bonds, security or sureties required by statute, court rule or
otherwise;

(e) any demand for possession of Collateral prior to commencement of any suit; and




(f) all rights to claim or recover attorney’s fees and costs in the event that Pledgor is
successful in any action to remove, suspend or prevent the enforcement of a judgment entered by
confession.

18. EXCLUSIVE JURISDICTION. Fledgor hereby consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of any state
or federal court located within the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, and irrevocably agrees that, subject to
the Bank’s election, all actions or proceedings relating to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated
hereunder shall be litigated in such courts, and Pledgor waivés any objection which Pledgor may have
based on improper venue or forum non conveniens to the conduct of any proceeding in any such court and
waives personal service of any and all process upon Pledgor, and consents that all such service of process
be made by mail or messenger directed to Pledgor as provided for in Section 15. Nothing contained in this
Section 18 shall affect the right of Bank to serve legal process in any other manner permitted by law or
affect the right of Bank to bring any action or proceeding against Pledgor or Pledgor’s property in the
courts of any other jurisdiction.

19. MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS,

19.1 Severability. The provisions of this Agreement and all other Loan Documents are deemed
to be severable, and the invalidity or unenforceability of any provision shall not affect or impair the
remaining provisions which shall continue in full force and effect.

19.2 Headings. The headings of the Articles, Sections, paragraphs and clauses of this Agreement
are inserted for convenience only and shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Agreement.

19.3 Binding Effect. This Agreement and all rights and powers granted hereby will bind and
inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective permitted successors and assigns.

19.4  Amendment. No modification of this Agreement or any of the Loan Documents shall be
binding or enforceable unless in writing and signed by or on behalf of the party against whom
enforcement is sought.

19.5 Governing Law. This Agreement has been made, executed and delivered in the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and will be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of
such Commonwealth without regard to conflict of law principles. ‘

19.6 No Third Party Beneficiaries. The rights and benefits of this Agreement and the Loan
Documents shall not inure to the benefit of any third party.

19.7 Exhibits and Schedules. All exhibits and schedules attached hefeto are hereby made a part
of this Agreement. ' '

19.8 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which
taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument, and any of the parties hereto may
execute this Agreement by signing any such counterpart.

19.9  No Joint Venture. Nothing contained herein is intended to permit or authorize Pledgor to
make any contract on behalf of Bank, nor shall this Agreement be construed as creating a partnership,
joint venture or making Bank an investor in Pledgor.

20. WAIVER OF RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY. PLEDGOR AND BANK, BY ITS ACCEPTANCE
HEREOF, WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY ON ANY CLAIM, DEMAND, ACTION OR CAUSE
OF ACTION (a) ARISING UNDER THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OTHER DOCUMENT OR
INSTRUMENT REFERRED TO HEREIN OR DELIVERED IN CONNECTION HEREWITH, OR (b) IN
ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH OR RELATED OR INCIDENTAL TO THE DEALINGS OF PLEDGOR
WITH RESPECT TO THIS AGREEMENT OR ANY OTHER DOCUMENT OR INSTRUMENT
REFERRED TO HEREIN OR DELIVERED IN CONNECTION HEREWITH, OR THE TRANSACTIONS




RELATED HERETO OR THERETO, IN EACH CASE WHETHER SOUNDING IN CONTRACT OR
TORT OR OTHERWISE. PLEDGOR AND BANK AGREE AND CONSENT THAT ANY SUCH CLAIM,
DEMAND, ACTION OR CAUSE OF ACTION SHALL BE DECIDED BY COURT TRIAL WITHOUT A
JURY, AND THAT ANY PARTY TO THIS AGREEMENT MAYFILE AN ORIGINAL
COUNTERPART OR A COPY OF THIS SECTION WITH ANY COURT AS WRITTEN EVIDENCE OF
THE CONSENT OF PLEDGOR AND BANK TO THE WAIVER OF THEIR RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Pledgor has executed this Agreement as of the day and year first above
written. :

INFOLOGIX SYSTEMS CORPORATION
(formerly known as Info Logix Inc.)

By:  /s/ David T. Gulian
David Gulian, President

10




Domestic Subsidiaries

SUBSIDIARIES OF REGISTRANT
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Exhibit 21
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, David T. Gulian, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of InfoLogix, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit
to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for
the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented
in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as
of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules [3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) that occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report)
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, 1o the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the
registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 29, 2007

/s/ DAVID T. GULIAN

David T. Gulian
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, John A. Roberts, certify that:
1. Ihave reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of InfoLogix, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untruc statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included
in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and
cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and
maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a.  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls
and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensurc that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is rcasonably likcly to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’s board of directors {(or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who
have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 29, 2007

/s/ JOHN A. ROBERTS
John A. Roberts
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, David T. Gulian, the Chief Executive Officer of Infologix, Inc. (the “Company™), hereby certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that:

¢ the Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2006 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Form 10-K”), fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or
780(d)); and

e the information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: March 29, 2007

/s DAVID T. GULIAN
David T. Gulian
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, John A. Roberts, the Chief Financial Officer of InfoLogix, Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,
that:

e the Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2006 as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Form 10-K”), fully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or
780(d)); and

e the information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: March 29, 2007

/s/ John A. Roberts
John A. Roberts
Chief Financial Officer




Stock Performance Graph and Cumulative Total Return

The graph below sets forth InfoLogix’s cumulative stockholder return with the cumulative stockholder
return of the NASDAQ Composite Index and the NASDAQ Electronic Components Index. The graph
assumes that the value of the investment in each of the three was $100 for the period December 5, 2006
through March 31, 2007 and that all dividends were reinvested.
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We chose the foregoing indexes for comparison with our stock price because we believe the NASDAQ
Composite index is a broad equity market of all companies whose stock is traded on the NASDAQ market,
and because the NASDAQ Computer Index is representative of companies in the same line of business as
that in which we operate.




Stockholder INFORMATION

BOoARD OF DIRECTORS

DAVID T. GULIAN,
President and CEO,
InfoLogix, Inc.

WAYNE D. HOCH,
Principal,
Madison Capital Advisors LLC

RICHARD HODGE,
Executive Vice President,
InfoLogix, inc,

THOMAS C. LYNCH,
Senior Vice President,
The Staubach Group

THOMAS O. MILLER,
Principal,
Stinsights, Inc.

PETE MUSSER,
CEQ,
The Musser Group

JAKE STEINFELD,

Chairman,
Body by Jake Global LLC

RICHARD A. VERMEIL,
President, Vermeil Enterprises, Inc.
Former NFL Head Coach

CRAIG A. WILENSKY,
Executive Vice President,
InfoLogix, Inc,

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

101 East County Line Road - Suite 210
Hatboro, Pennsylvania 19040
215-604-0691

www.infologixsys.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS INFORMATION

For financial/investment data and
general information about InfolLogix, inc.,
contact The Piacente Group at
212-481-2050.

Information about the Company may also
be found at www.infologixsys.com.

GENERAL COUNSEL

Drinker Biddle & Reath, LLP

One Logan Square

18th and Cherry Streets
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103

AUDITORS INFORMATICN

McGladry & Pullen, LLP

One Valley Square, Suite 250
512 Township Line Road

Blue Bell, Pennsylvania 19422

TRANSFER AGENT

StockTrans, Inc,
44 West Lancaster Avenue
Ardmore, Pennsylvania 19003

COMMON STOCK

The Company’s common stock trades on the

OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol IFLG
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